Public Document Pack
Please Contact

Alan Bardet

Extension

43208

Date of Publication

20 July 2021

E Mail

alan.bardet@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Wednesday 28 July 2021 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber - Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 7HH
IMPORTANT: The Council fully recognises and respects the role and importance of democratic
meetings and is committed to protecting the health and safety of Elected Members and Officers who
participate. Risk assessments are undertaken in advance of each meeting, and are reviewed on an
ongoing basis.
Social distancing measures will be in place throughout the meeting, however it is important that you
do not attend the meeting if you or anyone in your household are required to selfisolate due to
receiving a positive COVID-19 test result, having symptoms of COVID-19, or having been told that
you have been in contact with someone who has tested positive for COVID-19.
For the purpose of public transparency and accountability, the meeting will be live streamed online.
The livestream can be accessed here:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCZCvPUsJ0LwMJ9ukDsGf0Hw
For health and safety reasons and in accordance with our risk assessment, members of the public
are asked to follow the meeting via this method rather than attending in person. If you are unable to
access the meeting this way, please contact us so that we can explore whether any safe alternative
option is possible. The media will be able to report on proceedings from the live stream.

Agenda
1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure

2

Apologies for absence

3

Minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2021

4

Urgent Business

(Pages 3 - 4)

To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

continuing to do what matters for Ryedale

5

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

6

Chair's Announcements

7

Everyone Active Annual Report

(Pages 5 - 14)

8

Annual Health and Safety Report

(Pages 15 - 24)

9

Draft Annual Governance Statement

(Pages 25 - 44)

10

External Audit-Update

(Pages 45 - 62)

11

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report 2020-21

(Pages 63 - 96)

12

Internal Audit Work Programme 2021-22

13

Treasury Management Annual Report 2020/21

14

Scrutiny Reviews Progress Report and Identification of Future Topics
123 - 132)

15

Decisions from other Committees

(Pages 97 - 110)
(Pages 111 - 122)
(Pages

(Pages 133 - 138)

Policy and Resources Committee held on 29 June 2021.

16

O&S Forward Plan

17

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

(Pages 139 - 142)

Agenda Item 3
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Held at Council Chamber - Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 7HH
on Thursday 10 June 2021
Present
Councillors Cussons MBE, Garbutt Moore, King, Middleton (Chairman), Oxley, Raine,
Raper and Wass (Vice-Chairman)
In Attendance
Alan Bardet and Simon Copley in person and Margaret Wallace via MS Teams

Minutes
1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure

2

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Cllr Bailey.

3

Minutes of the meeting held on 22 April 2021
Decision
That the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Meeting held on 22
April 2021 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

Voting Record
Unanimous
4

Urgent Business
There was no urgent business.

5

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

6

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q4 2020/21
Considered – The report of the Head of Customer Services and Communities
Decision
That the Customer Complaints and Compliments Report Q4 2020/2021 Report
be received and noted.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1

Page 3

Thursday 10 June 2021

Voting Record
Unanimous
7

Appointment of Corporate Governance Standards Sub-Committee
The following Members were appointed to the Corporate Governance
Standards Sub-Committee:
Cllrs King, Middleton and Wass.
Substitutes: Cllrs Garbutt Moore, Oxley and Raine.
Voting Record
Unanimous

8

Decisions from other Committees
The Committee received the Minutes of the Policy and Resources Committee
held on 27 May 2021.

9

O&S Forward Plan
The Head of Corporate Governance outlined proposals for two standards
session. One a workshop to review the protocol for member-officer relations
(28 June 2021) and one a training session on councillor behaviours (14 July
2021). The committee were supportive of the proposals.
It was agreed that scoping reports be draw up for the following topics:




Performance Appraisal System
Affordable Housing
Review of Enforcement

It was also agreed that the report on Equality and Diversity be re-circulated to
members and that the Policy and Resources Committee’s work on the Climate
Change Action Plan be kept under review.
10

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
There being no other items of urgent business the meeting closed at 7:13pm.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2

Page 4

Thursday 10 June 2021

MBA

Agenda Item 7

EVERYONE ACTIVE – ANNUAL REPORT TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUNITY COMMITTEE
2020 - 2021

1.0

Background
SLM trading as Everyone Active were awarded the contract to manage Derwent Swim & Fitness
Centre, Ryedale Sports Centre (at Lady Lumley’s School) and Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre,
which commenced on the 1st October 2014 for 10.5 years. The contract is in it’s 6 year and
has 4 years to run.
Everyone Active invested £300,000 at the start of the contract to build a new 40 station fitness
suite at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre, previously the site was only a pool and extended the
gym at Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre, replaced gym equipment and made facility
improvements to reception areas.

2.0

Global Coronavirus Pandemic

2.1

Facility Closure – The Coronavirus Act 2020
In order to halt the spread of COVID-19, the government passed a Specific Change in Law,
namely The Coronavirus Act 2020 and The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions)
(England) (Regulations) and leisure centres were forced to close on the following dates during
the financial year April 2020 – March 2021.




24 March 2020 to 1st August 2020 (inclusive) – 131 days
5 November to 2 December (inclusive) – 28 days
6 January to 11 April (inclusive) – 95 days

The facilities in Ryedale were closed for a total of 254 days.

2.2

Social Distancing Restrictions
During the lockdown period the SLM Board and senior management team have participated in
working groups that have considered the impact of COVID-19 and lockdown on the leisure
sector. We have collaborated with and sought guidance from the following external
organisations. The guidance was used to help develop our plans.










UK Government www.gov.uk
Public Health England www.gov.uk
World Health Organisation www.who.int
UK Active www.ukactive.com
Swim England www.swimming.org
CIBSE www.cibse.org
CIMSPA www.cimspa.co.uk
PWTAG www.pwtag.org
EMDUK www.emduk.org

We ensured our centres operated within the requirements set out by the Government and
Public Health England, to reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission in our leisure centres.

Page 5

2.3

Business Restrictions

2.3.1

Fitness & Group Exercise
The new operating procedures will impact on customer experience and every effort was made
to ensure that our gyms were always maintained to the highest standards of hygiene and safety.
The maximum occupancy of the gym was calculated on an area of 3m x 3m per person. This
reduced the capacity of our gyms as follows: Ryedale Pool
Pre-Covid

35 stations

With Covid

20 stations

Derwent Pool
Pre-Covid

18 stations

With Covid

13 stations

The following measures were introduced: 









2.3.2

Customers and colleagues were expected to maintain social distancing and fitness
stations were located 2m apart.
A booking system was introduced to manage occupancy levels to avoid overcrowding.
All customers were required to pre-book for a session via the Everyone Active App.
Sessions were bookable with a maximum session of 50 minutes per customer being
allowed. This allowed for10 minutes for cleaning of equipment in between sessions.
All customers were asked to limit their bookings to one session per day.
The maximum number of customers that can be booked into a session will be restricted
to 90% of the number of fitness stations available. This will provide 10% spare capacity
to cater for walk-in customers that have not pre-booked a session as they were
unaware of the new booking system.
Customers are advised to attend in their gym kit and be prepared to shower and change
at home, although changing rooms will be open.
Customers are asked to clean equipment before and after each use. Cleaning stations
will be located around the gym.
Colleagues cleaned equipment after every session. Trained staff disinfected the fitness
suite and studios with a fogging machine at the end of each shift.

Swimming









Swimming lesson times are staggered with a 15-minute break for changeovers
between each lesson.
3m x 3m of space per pupil was allocated for lesson space. This decreased our capacity
by 40%.
No other activities took place in the pool when lessons were on. This created the
additional space that will be required to accommodate lessons and maintain social
distancing requirements.
Swim Teachers are required to teach from the poolside and maintain a 2-metre
distance from pupils at all times.
Parents are required to attend lessons in the water with younger children – with only 1
parent per child.
Pupils are required to attend lessons (“beach ready”) ready changed in their costumes.
This avoided using the changing rooms prior to the lesson starting.
Lane swimming operated in double-width lanes and bather loads were reduced, 4 lane
x 25m pool 20 swimmers

Page 6




2.4

All sessions are bookable online (via the Website or the upgraded Everyone Active
App) in advance so that capacities could be managed.
Bookable sessions are a maximum of 50 minutes.

Health & Safety
All facilities that we operate have a designated COVID-19 Officer responsible for COVID-19
considerations. In all cases the General Manager is designated as this role. The COVID-19
Officer will ensure that they are up to date with central or local government recommendations.
The leisure centres are managed in accordance with the site specific Normal Operating
Procedures and detailed COVID 19 risk assessments to support changes in guidance and
government updates to restrictions and tiers.
Additional checks and measures around COVID 19 have been put in place with additional
checks, high touch point checks and control measures purchased to facilitate the opening of
the centres safely. Several activities have still not returned at the point of writing this report.






A detailed Overview of Cleaning Requirements and Materials has been undertaken.
the need for increased standards of hygiene and cleanliness is extremely important in
preventing bacteria and the risk of transfer of the virus. new measures have been reimplemented, cleaning schedules, materials and specialist equipment that will be used
to maintain standards. Colleagues will need to be re-trained in the new processes and
clear work instructions provided for those performing cleaning tasks.
Social Distancing Materials have been designed and produced. A suite of customer
information and signage materials has been displayed in all centres with the aim of
encouraging social distancing and the need for following hygiene requirements. All
sites need to be dressed with / reviewed for instructional signage, information points,
social distance markers and hand sanitising units. Regular daily checks of these
materials are marked by the Duty Manager to ensure they centre always remains
COVID secure.
Test and Trace Service – Information and Procedures to be followed by colleagues,
under the guidance of the General Manager to stop any spread of COVID 19. The NHS
Test and Trace service forms a central part of the Government’s Coronavirus recovery
strategy and plays a vital role in providing early warning if COVID-19 activity is
increasing locally, regionally or nationally. This information will then be used to inform
the government’s approach to stop the spread of the virus. The process to follow for
Test and Trace is set out in the Colleague COVID-19 Flowchart for Self-isolation and
the Test and Trace. It is vital that Everyone Active play their part by 1) Making facilities
as safe as possible. 2) Encouraging colleagues to comply with any notifications to selfisolate and supporting them when in isolation is required.

Significant cost has been used to ensure that standards have been adhered to, while also
ensuring that customers and colleagues get the professional and friendly service that the
community leisure centres should be providing, while also brining back as many activities as
the NGB (National Governing Body) guidance allows.

3.0

Operational Delivery 2020/2021

3.1

Customers
Most of the interactions with the leisure facilities have had to be made interactive to ensure the
COVID guidance has been adhered to. This has also included a large amount of information
being turned electronic and broadcast as required. In addition to this digital development, there
have been many visible changes in centre for the customers too. All these changes took effect
from the end of Lockdown 1 on our reopening of 1st August 2020.

Page 7



















3.2

Circulation and activity spaces are adapted where possible to maintain social distancing. This
will be achieved by the placement of “social distance” floor spots where queueing is necessary.
One-way systems have been implemented where reasonably practicable. This has been
achieved by appropriate arrows on floors or walls at key locations for guidance.
Colleagues and customers will be encouraged to use the stairs rather than lifts. The capacity
of lifts will be reduced to account for social distancing measures. Signage will be amended to
indicate the maximum occupancy of lifts. (Applicable at Derwent Pool and Ryedale Sport
Centre)
Floor marking tape has been used to denote social distance spacing around the gym floor. We
will create “boxes” in stretching areas (2x2m with a 1 m walkway in between) and will place
tape to denote the corners of all portable equipment such as gym benches, rowing machines
etc.
Capacity for customer activities such as group exercise classes are set with maximum numbers
in line with the site activity Risk Assessment and appropriate guidelines. Booking systems will
be amended accordingly to prevent over crowding based on our COVID Risk Assessments
Customer interactions and communication has been digitalised wherever possible. This will be
achieved via online bookings at www.everyoneactive.com and the everyone active app.
Payment systems will be digitalised to remove the requirement for cash handling and all block
bookings with clubs and schools are now managed via the online web portal.
Where social distancing guidelines cannot be maintained mitigating measures (e.g. sneeze
screens) have been implemented. Activities that cannot currently comply with social distancing
requirements WILL NOT take place under any circumstances.
Hand sanitising stations are located prominently at the entrance, key locations and exit points
around the centres. Colleagues and customers will also be encouraged to clean their hands
regularly, and additional checks are in place to ensure stock levels are maintained during all
hours of operation
Where colleagues work in one place, workstations will be allocated to individuals and marked
up as such with stickers to denote which colleagues work at that station. Travel between leisure
centres has been restricted to the General Manager and all other colleagues work at one
location, or from home.
Signage has been displayed by wash hand basins to provide instructions on good hand
washing techniques.
Clubs
Our two Swimming Clubs, as well as the other clubs which use the three leisure facilities in
Ryedale, are all key partners and a clear part of the leisure recovery and participation growth
across the leisure contract. We have worked hard to support several clubs return to activity
over the last 12 months.
Facility

Club Number

Swimming Pool

4

Astro Turf Pitch

16

Sports Hall

12

Other

4

We have developed a ‘Club Support Programme’ which we are currently delivering which allows
support to all our clubs cohesively to supporting their return, Measures which have been
implemented are; flexible programming, flexible pricing, club funding advice and support,
access to the Everyone Active Sporting Champions Scheme and partner working with North
Yorkshire Sport and Sport England on the Club Matters Programme.

Page 8

3.3

Colleagues
We have proactively managed the prevention of COVID19 spread across the workforce which
robust measures, which have to date, resulted in zero cases reports in any leisure facility within
Ryedale.










Instructing colleagues with symptoms of COVID-19 to stay away from work and protecting
vulnerable colleagues: 1) Ensuring colleagues who need to self-isolate are not asked to work
2) Ensuring that Colleagues who are (or live with) someone clinically extremely vulnerable work
from home where possible and if at work (after the 1st August) can always maintain a social
distance within their role
We have purchased equipment to protect colleagues where required (e.g. head microphones
for group exercise instructors, first aid masks.)
We have reduced the volume of deliveries and identify safe areas for delivery.
Customers have been asked to provide feedback and enquiries through our online services
rather than face to face conversation where possible.
First Aid Qualified colleagues will perform emergency procedures by following UK
Resuscitation Council and RLSS guidance.
Consulting and training colleagues in new procedures. This will be performed via inductions
prior to re-opening of facilities. General Managers will be required to deliver training to all
colleagues that will be working. And training will be moved online to ABSORB where possible.
Communicating updates to procedures and expected behaviour to colleagues in weekly
meetings via Video Conferencing software.
Colleagues have continued to be employed while Furlough has been utilised. Training and
upskilled in line with the training matrix, has moved online or hybrid with online and socially
distanced training being incorporated instead.
A restructure of the business to ensure the facilities considered the digital developments and
new hybrid working model across the smaller sites, two redundancies were completed in
September 2020.

4.0

Building Maintenance
Derwent Swim and Fitness




Repairs have been made to the pool tank and pipework to repair historic leaks and ensure the
pool remains operational.
Upgrades to the pool chemical dosing system and a full replacement of the filter media at site
to meet the PWTAG guided standards of replacement every 15 years.
Removal of a store cupboard to allow an extension to the gym area allowing additional capacity
with the social distancing restrictions.
Ryedale Swim and Fitness





Refurbishment of the Air Handling units, internal workings which supply the changing rooms
and pool hall.
Partial refurbishment of the leisure centres CHP (Combined Heat and Power) unit, to sustain a
further 10,000 hours of usage.
Major repair works to the solar heating system with new expansion vessels and a new plate
heat exchanger being installed to support the carbon reduction plans at the site.
Ryedale Sports Centre




Repairs to the air conditioning and air handing on the spin studio and multipurpose room to
meet COVID standards
Replacement of climbing PPE (Personal Protective Equipment) following equipment expiry
dates being met

Page 9

5.0

Participation
Overall Attendance: We have had 41,499 visits during the last 12 months across the three
leisure centres. Numbers are lower due to the number of days closed (254 days of closure in
total), in addition to the strict capacity reductions which have been enforced on the swim, gym
and activities unable to return.

Ryedale
Centre

Swim

&

Fitness

Derwent
Centre

Swim

&

Fitness

Ryedale Sport Centre

6.0

Apr 16 to
Mar 17

Apr 17 to
Mar 18

Apr 18 to
Mar 19

Apr 19 to
Mar 20

103,636

103,779

104,834

84,215

83,692

84,832

26,621

24,871

25,010

24,365

2,248

214,472

212,342

214,676

212,954

41,499

103,222
85,367

Apr 20 to
Mar 21
22,018
17,233

Customer Feedback
Across all the centres we collect customer feedback via the following methods: 





Verbal feedback via colleagues who are recorded electronically
E-mail the manager via the website or ‘Atreemo’
Social Media
Mystery Shopper scheme with ‘QDOS Mystery Shopper Ltd’ and ‘Right Directions’.
Through email questionnaires, linked directly into Single Customer View.

Launched in August 2016, SLM has made a significant investment into a new software package
called ‘Single Customer View’. This provides a new method for providing feedback. Single
Customer View guarantees that a customer will always get a response within 48 hours. If a
customer does not get a response, then the comment is escalated to the next Line Manager. The
software also allows us to look at the feedback and identify trends in comments. This has been
pivotal during the COVID Pandemic to allow us to ensure we act promptly on feedback and
concerns of customers while we work hard to bring everyone back into the leisure facilities safely.
A selection of the comments we have received during 2020-21:
Comments Received:

ENJOYED A LOVELY SWIM WITH THE LANE ROPES AND SIGNS. HOPES THEY DONT
GO, HAS BEEN COMING FOR YEARS AND WAS A GREAT IMPROVEMENT. LOVELY WIDE
LANES TO SWIM IN!
Catherine has recently moved to the area and came in to check the pool and gym for her
husband before signing up.
She commented on how nice the pool and gym were to have as an amenity in a small market
town and they intended to come and enjoy the facility in the near future and will join. She will
arrange PT for her husband who is in the army and has a pre-existing ankle injury.

Bethany and partner Oliver commented on how nice the pool was, and clear to follow the oneway systems and that Alice would be starting Adult and Child lessons shortly.
The online booking is better. I like being able to see how many people are booked into a session
so I can avoid busy sessions and make sure I am booked onto the gym sessions that are best
for me. The door scanner is a great addition and should have been there ages ago! Saves lots
of unnecessary contact at reception.

Page 10

The Managers are great assets to your business. He has said he will be looking at getting us
an Annual Tennis Membership back up and running and that you will also be looking to restart
holiday activities from the summer now you are open! Great stuff!

6.1

Customer Feedback Rankings
Table below shows feedback ratings as entered by the customer:

Derwent
Centre

Swim

&

Fitness

Ryedale
Centre

Swim

&

Fitness

Ryedale Sport Centre

7.0

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

None

0

1

1

1

0

0

1

0

2

0

1

8

1

1

6

1

0

1

3

1

1

2

0

24

2

2

0

1

0

0

2

0

3

0

0

6

3

4

7

3

0

1

6

1

6

2

1

38

Community Outreach and Engagement
GP Referral & ESCAPE Pain Project
Following the re-launch of the GP Referral program in February 2019, we have seen significant
growth in the demand for this service and have subsequently increased the number of hours
available for contact with our dedicated instructor. The scheme has seen 28 people complete
the 12-week scheme since re-launch in February 2019, with a number more referrals which
have been coming in through the pandemic and we have continued to consult and support with
telephone consultations.

Off the back of the great work of our GP Referral instructor Matt, we were successful in securing
funding from North Yorkshire Sport to deliver the ESCAPE Pain Project in the Ryedale District.
ESCAPE-pain is a 6-week, 12 session rehabilitation programme for people with chronic hip and
knee joint pain. It is a well-recognised national programme, run by highly professional ESCAPEPain trained instructors. The Health Benefits can include: Improvement in pain, physical and
mental well-being, Increased self-confidence, less reliance on medication and can help reduce
the need for surgery. This scheme has seen a total of 17 people complete the program in the
last 18 months, which has now been completed remotely to ensure that participants remain
engaged.

Care Leavers Program
An initiative which applies to any young person who is looked after or a care leaver, aged
between 16-25 and who lives within the District of Ryedale or the Borough of Scarborough.
Everyone Active will offer eligible young people free access to the following leisure centres:







Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre
Scarborough Sports Village
Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre
Whitby Leisure Centre
Ryedale Sport Centre (evenings and school holidays only)
Pindar Leisure Centre (evenings and school holidays only)

Page 11

Referrals are made by the Personal Advisor or Social Worker, in consultation with the young
person. To date, the scheme has seen 9 young people sign up to the scheme and make use
of their membership more than 3 times in the first month, with Ryedale District.

Sporting Champions
Everyone Active’s Sporting Champions provides funding and support for talented athletes from
across the UK. Launched in 2016 and supported by one of the country’s most recognized
sporting talents, Colin Jackson CBE, has already helped many athletes on their journey to
become a national and international sporting success. With access to over 140 of Everyone
Active’s leisure centers across the country, athletes on the scheme can use the highest
standard of facilities for their ongoing training.
We have had 2 talented individuals from Derwent Swim & Fitness and 7 from Ryedale Swim &
Fitness who received a bronze sponsorship package join the scheme which received a free 1year membership to help them keep their fitness levels. Although financial support was not a
possibility this year, it is essential that our work to support the talent within the Ryedale District
remains in place.

8.0

Financial Support

8.1

During the pandemic the Government provided several support packages to assist business,
Everyone Active ensured it applied and received the maximum amount of support available. In
addition, Everyone Active and Ryedale District Council worked hard to ensure the provision of
leisure facilities in the District was sustainable as we progressed through and out of the
pandemic.

8.2

Local Restrictions Support Grant
Delivered through local authorities, are to support local businesses during the national
lockdown periods and periods of local restrictions. Everyone Active received £28,286 during
2020/2021.

8.3

Business Rate Relief
The Government introduced a business rate relief holiday during 2020/2021 and this benefitted
Everyone Active by £7,421.

8.4

Furlough
Everyone Active utilised the Government furlough scheme to ensure colleagues were paid a
minimum of 80% of their average earnings when they were not required to work, this amounted
to £240,374 during 2020/21.

8.5

Ryedale District Council
Everyone Active worked closely with Ryedale District Council to mitigate the effect of the
pandemic on the leisure provision in the district and Ryedale District Council provided £146,903
of deficit payments during 2020/2021 to off-set the majority of Everyone Active’s losses.

8.6

National Leisure Relief Fund
Everyone Active and Ryedale District Council worked together to secure £90,000 from the Sport
England National Leisure Relief Fund to assist leisure centre operators for the financial year
2021/2022.

Page 12

9.0

Recovery 2021 – 2022
Everyone Active has a comprehensive recovery plan with the aim to recover the business within
12 months. As part of this, there are three key documents which are embedded into all business
decisions. See the attachment to this report:




Sport England ‘Uniting the Movement’
Everyone Active Business Plan 2021 – 2022
Community Wellbeing Plan

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

28 JULY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF COMMUNICATIONS, TECHNOLOGIES AND BUSINESS
TRANSFORMATION
LOUISE, WOOD

TITLE OF REPORT:

HEALTH & SAFETY ANNUAL REPORT

WARDS AFFECTED:

N/A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide information and analysis of the corporate health and
safety position in the 2019/2020 financial year.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that Committee note the content of the report and the positive progress
made on health and safety implementation in the 2019/2020 year – a year of considerable
challenge due to the global COVID pandemic.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The Health and Safety Policy (Organisation) requires that a report be compiled on Ryedale
District Council’s health and safety performance on an annual basis, and that that report be
provided to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee. This report fulfils that duty.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

None identified

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 15

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The content of this report draws upon the Council’s Health and Safety Policy, which consists
of a Policy Statement and Organisation document. The report acknowledges minor
improvements are required to the Policy, which will be submitted to P&R.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

INTRODUCTION

This report provides a summary of the key areas of corporate health and safety activity during the
2020/21 financial year. It has been prepared for Overview and Scrutiny Committee, in line with the
commitment to provide such a report as set out in the health and safety policy.

6.2

POLICY AND MANAGEMENT

The corporate health and safety policy comprises two elements: a health and safety policy statement
and an “organisation” document which sets out roles and responsibilities. The policy was approved
by Policy and Resources Committee on 4 July 2019.
In essence the policy continued to be fit-for-purpose in 2020/21, with a minor change that the
delegated lead responsibility for health and safety was reassigned to the Head of Communications,
Technologies and Business Transformation in place of the Deputy Chief Executive (as that post is
vacant).
During the 2020/21 year two further improvements to the policy were identified. Firstly, that equality,
diversity and inclusion be referenced in the policy statement. Secondly that some reorganisation of
the arrangements document (although not the content, which remains sound) would be beneficial to
help staff at different managerial levels to identify the responsibilities assigned to them. These minor
changes will be put to the P&R Committee in the 2021/22 financial year.
The Corporate Health, Safety and Well-being Group met quarterly throughout the year, providing a
focus on health and safety activity within the organisation. The requirement for “competent officer”
support was met through a Service Level Agreement with North Yorkshire County Council at a cost of
£46,434+VAT for 96 days service. An additional £9k for 24 extra days was also commissioned to assist
with updating Streetscene risk assessments.

6.3

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic dominated corporate health and safety activity during 2020/21. This section
describes the key features of the health and safety response in relation to the workforce, the key
indicators of effectiveness, and a brief assessment.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 16

Response:


In response to government guidance Ryedale District Council facilitated significant numbers of
staff to work from home, with prioritization of those with underlying health conditions that
would place them at additional risk. This involved provisioning 106 staff with laptops and
phones within a four week period – with the majority within the first week. Rotas were put into
operation to retain a minimal number of staff in attendance at Ryedale House to cover the
elements of essential services that were unable to be done from home. Arrangements were also
put in place at operational buildings such as the Deport and Derwent Lodge.



COVID-secure measures were put in place at RDC sites. This included a building handbook for
staff attending the Ryedale House and the Depot to ensure new working arrangements were
clearly understood, social distancing, one-way systems, advice posters, hand sanitizers, safety
screens and desk cleaning equipment in all offices, a personal protective equipment (PPE)
ordering system, and touch-point cleaning throughout the day. A duty officer daily check was
introduced to ensure COVID-secure arrangements were being followed.



The Waste and Environment Service introduced a number of measures including storage of
waste for 72 hours prior to disposal, ventilation and daily cleaning down of vehicles and
additional vehicles to enable social distancing during rounds.



Where democratic meetings were able to be held in-person, these were organised in accordance
with government health and safety guidelines and detailed risk assessments. During lockdown
periods arrangements were made for democratic meetings to be held digitally, again in
alignment with government guidance, in order to protect Elected Members, attending officers
and members of the public.



Service risk assessments were adapted in light of COVID arrangements to ensure safe working,
with business practices adapted accordingly and delivery of some aspects of service (eg in
person site visits or meetings) paused to align with the appropriate health and safety guidance.



Homeworkers were issued with a homeworking handbook, with guidance on how to work safely
at home, including advice on maintaining good mental health and how to access the Council’s
employee support helpline. Staff working at home were provided with refresher training on
setting up a safe home work-space, and required to conduct a structured assessment of their to
assess home health and safety arrangements and identify necessary adjustments. A more
streamlined system to report accidents and near misses at home was introduced and publicized
to staff, and none were reported. To support home working, 270 items (eg chairs, monitors,
desks, keyboards, mouse, HDMI cables, home plug network sets, laptop risers, wrist rests and
footrests) were issued. Home work-station assessments were also introduced as a matter of
course for every new member of staff on joining the organisation.



A new section was launched on RDC’s intranet for COVID-related guidance. A monthly working
safety meeting was introduced for any concerns to be raised about the arrangements and to
communicate any new working practices.



A weekly report on staffing was introduced to provide quick-access to information on levels of
COVID sickness, self-isolation and shielding within the organisation.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 17



The procurement of personal protective equipment (PPE) was centralized in order to benefit
from efficiency and cost-savings on bulk buying. A system for requesting PPE was introduced
and PPE provided to staff undertaking community work and public-facing duties.



Government, HSE and other relevant guidance was regularly monitored and assessed to ensure
the organisation responded rapidly and proportionately to rapid changes.

Indicators:


Absence through COVID-sickness was low given the severity of the pandemic (46 days). Services
were able to be maintained at normal or near-normal levels, due to the responsible attitude
taken by staff, and the prudent corporate approach to employee health and safety, based on risk
minimization.



There were only two workplace-related outbreaks of COVID (an outbreak being defined as two
cases or more). Both were in frontline teams. The corporate approach of reporting, selfisolation of workers in proximity (as per the government guidance definition) and a further
approach of self-isolating secondary contacts (a step beyond that required by Test and Trace
guidance) meant that these were rapidly and effectively contained.



On 28 January 2021the Health and Safety Executive carried out a spot-check of Ryedale House
with regard to COVID-secure arrangements. The inspection was passed without any notes for
action.

Assessment and improvement
On review, the Council’s health and safety response to COVID has worked well and has enabled staff
teams, Elected Members and members of the public (in respect of contact with the Council) to stay
safe and maintain public services throughout the fluctuating context of the pandemic.
Challenges were greatest with frontline teams. However use of PPE and additional arrangements –
whilst often presenting greater logistical complexity – proved effective.
Full-time home working was a radical cultural change for many within the organisation, but staff and
systems have adapted well. It has presented challenges for some workers (especially those with young
children during lockdown periods), and mental health and well-being is something that the
organisation needs to act upon through the mental health plan. However, staff have reported benefits
in terms of work-life balance, reduced commute and additional flexibility that they are keen to retain
in the longer-term. This will be addressed through a review of COVID-secure arrangements and
appropriate operational models in 2021/22 to ensure that operational requirements are balanced
with staff feedback on work/life balance, flexibility and collaborative contact with colleagues.

6.4

ACCIDENTS AND NEAR MISSES

There were eight accidents/near misses in 2020/21. All were in Streetscene, which is a higher risk
area of the organisation due to the nature of the work undertaken.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 18

No accident was of sufficient severity to require a RIDDOR report. (RIDDOR reports are required for
certain serious workplace accidents, occupational diseases or dangerous near misses).




The main type of accident was a slip or trip on the same level (4 from 8 incidences)
The main type of injury was strain/sprain (5 from 8 incidences)
All accidents and the actions taken were recorded locally and the necessary remedial actions
taken

During the year communications were issued regarding reporting accidents at home that occurred
whilst working at home, and a new, simpler online reporting mechanism introduced.
Assessment and improvement
Streetscene remains a key focus for health and safety monitoring, given the work involves manual
handling, vehicles, contact with machinery and physical movement. During the year additional
resource was put into a systematic review of of risk assessments in the Streetscene organisational
area, as the basis for a new safe working practices implementation plan. This work will complete in
2021/22.
Accidents will continue to be monitored departmentally, and at the Corporate Health, Safety and Wellbeing Group, in order to check if there are any systemic issues that need to be addressed. Generally
however the organisation has a low level of accidents and near-misses but we will continue to
disseminate regular communications to reinforce reporting mechanisms.

6.5




SICKNESS ABSENCE TRENDS
Sickness absence can be useful as an indicator not only of general health amongst the
workforce, but of staff well-being
Total sickness absence (long and short-term) during the year was 1,040 days lost. This equates to
an average of 4.68 days per employee.
For the purposes of comparison, in 2018/19 (ie pre-COVID), the average long-term sickness
absence for local authorities in North Yorkshire as a whole was 8.5 days. The average short-term
sickness absence for local authorities in North Yorkshire as a whole was 3.5 days (source: Local
Government Association, 2020). UNISON research from 2017 indicates that the local
government average days lost per year is 7.9 days. When compared against this research,
Ryedale District Council’s sickness absence rates are well within expected parameters.

Short-term absence
75 people were absent for a short period due to sickness (34% of the workforce). The top three
reasons for short-term (up to four weeks) absence were (in order):




Infections non-COVID (14 people)
Stomach, liver, kidney and digestion disorders (11 people)
Ear, eye, nose and mouth/dental (10 people)

COVID-19 was the fourth most prevalent reason for short-term absence (9 people).

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 19

An analysis of the number of days lost per absence reasons indicates that the three causes responsible
for the most working days lost were:




Infections (165 days/14 people)
Stress, depression, anxiety (89 days/6 people)
COVID (46 days/9 people)

It should be noted that no data is available to assess whether the days lost due to stress, depression
and anxiety were work-related.
Long-term absence
Six people were absent for a long-term period (more than four weeks) during the year.




Stress, depression and anxiety accounted for most long-term days lost (379 days/2 people)
Infections (157 days, 3 people)
Back and neck (33 days/1 person)

Assessment and improvement
Nationally, the reasons for most days lost are minor illnesses, musculo-skeletal and mental health, so
the key causes of sickness absence at RDC are similar to the national picture.
It is also clear from Local Resilience Forum information sharing that mental health, grief, trauma and
fatigue in the aftermath of COVID is likely to have a major impact on sickness levels and productivity
across the public sector.
The number of days lost through stress, depression and anxiety will continue to be closely monitored.
In addition, additional investment in capacity will be requested to support the health and well-being
of the workforce, as signalled in the budget papers presented to Full Council in February 2021. This
investment will support the work of the Council’s Well-being Group in 2021/22 and the following year.
An increase in investment and focus on mental health is a common theme across other public sector
organisations, in the interests of ensuring service continuity for the public, and demonstrating the
duty of care towards staff who have contributed an exceptional level of discretionary effort during the
pandemic.
This will be picked up in the 2021/22 year through the Well-being Group and a new mental health
programme.
For next year we will introduce comparative figures, so we can determine sickness absence trends
year on year and, if so, implement any necessary responses.

6.6

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH

There are two key aspects to occupational health: health surveillance (most relevant to the
Streetscene team) and occupational health referrals (relevant to all employees).
Occupational health support is provided by North Yorkshire County Council, with surveillance
managed through an online portal.
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 20

Through NYCC, Ryedale District Council employees also have access to Health Assured, a 24:7
telephone counselling support service that is publicized through the intranet and periodically in allstaff emails. Whilst it deals with broader issues than occupational health, data on Health Assured is
included in this section.
Health surveillance





Health surveillance is a system on ongoing health checks that may be required by law for
employees who are exposed to certain environmental conditions (eg noise or vibration, or
exposure to substances that are hazardous to health). The majority of roles at Ryedale District
Council do not require any statutory health surveillance. For the most part, the roles that
require health surveillance are in Waste and Environment.
Most health surveillance was conducted as questionnaire screening during the year due to
COVID, save for some onsite clinics during the brief lockdown lift in autumn 2020
In Streetscene there were 40 outstanding audio face-to-face or review testing sessions and 5
outstanding spirometry sessions at the end of the year. Onsite clinic planning for face-to-face
assessment is being addressed.

Referrals
A total of 37 referrals were received into the Occupational Health service from RDC.
Health Assured
28 staff accessed confidential help and support through Health Assured, the Council’s 24-hour
telephone counselling service, during the year. Of these:







16 calls were with regard to mental health
6 calls about general work-related issues
3 were legal issues (not necessarily work-related)
1 in relation to a life event
2 in relation to physical health
There were no calls in relation to relationships, financial or whistleblowing

No data is available to provide a comparison with the previous year, but if Ryedale District Council is
assumed to follow a similar pattern to other local authorities, it is expected that this figure would
represent a rise on the figure for previous years.
The number of people accessing the service should be read in context of the following notes:




The Council deliberately heavily promoted the use of the Health Assured service throughout the
pandemic, given the likelihood of increased stress and anxiety in the population generally
Counselling through Health Assured is not restricted to work matters, and may be on personal
issues
Health Assured is also open to a staff member’s immediate family. As a result of confidentiality,
no data is available on how the number of calls to the service might split between staff/family
members.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 21

Assessment and improvement
During the 2021/22 year outstanding surveillance checks will be made a priority and a number of
issues addressed, including:






6.7

Management ownership of occupational health to ensure data are promptly and regularly
reported to support management decision-making and action planning
Improved systems for ensuring that new roles are assessed for occupational health surveillance
Improved systems for ensuring all starters and leavers are added to/removed from the portal for
health surveillance
Investigation of the number rate of referrals for underlying trends
Support for mental health, through the mental health plan (subject to approval of resources)

HEALTH AND SAFETY TRAINING

All new employees are required to undertake basic training in health and safety and mental health
awareness. Managers are also required to undertake an additional training course in health and safety
for managers.
At 31.03.21, 100% of employees had completed the basic health and safety training and 98% had
completed mental health awareness training. Additional arrangements are made to train new
employees in Streetscene.
Assessment and improvement
Basic health and safety training is being addressed, however in 2021/22 we will review provision of
specific training in relation to particular roles and responsibilities, and to address any new issues
identified through the September revision of departmental risk assessments.

6.8

ASSETS

The Council has responsibility for a wide range of building and land assets, including Council offices,
amenity buildings, investment properties, sports and leisure buildings, car parks, public conveniences,
social housing, closed church yards, and miscellaneous buildings and pockets of land.
Condition surveys or reviews were limited in 2020/21 due to COVID restrictions. However urgent
reviews were prioritized.
During the year the Council increased the level of dedicated staff resource for the management of
building assets with a view to updating the asset register, conducting condition surveys, reviewing the
10 year maintenance plan and completing the tree survey mapping and maintenance programme in
2021/22.
Assessment and improvement
Condition surveys and maintenance plan across all Council assets to be prioritized in 2021, together
with fire-risk assessments and appropriate arrangements (eg asbestos, legionella) as buildings are reoccupied.
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 22

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Health and safety was budgeted within the 2021/22 budget. Additional cost was
incurred in relation to COVID requirements, which was picked up within the additional
capacity budgets supported by the Council and by government funding.
b)

Legal
This report indicates that Ryedale District Council is working to discharge its legal duties
with respect to health and safety.

c)

Other
No other implications identified.

Louise Wood
Head of Communications, Technologies and Business Transformation
Telephone No: 01653 600666 ext: 43223
E-Mail Address: louise.wood@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

28 JULY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report presents the draft Annual Governance Statement which has been included
in the draft accounts. The Committee is asked to note the Statement and to comment
on it ahead of any final changes before it is signed off as part of the Annual Accounts
later in the year.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that the Committee notes the draft Annual Governance Statement
as presented and feeds back any comments for consideration in the final statement to
the s151 Officer.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To include feedback from the Committee ahead of production of the final Statement.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is stressed that no
system of control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. In concluding this overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, a number
of issues have been identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous
improvement in the Governance Framework.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Council is required by regulations to prepare and publish an Annual Governance
Statement

Page 25

6.0

REPORT CONTENTS

6.1

The draft Annual Governance Statement is attached to this report as Appendix 1.

6.2

This sets out the framework within which financial control and corporate governance is
managed and reviewed by the Council. It also reports on key issues identified and any
relevant proposed actions.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Failure to manage risk can result in legal action and costs

b)

Legal
Failure to manage risk can result in legal action and costs

c)

Other (Climate Change, Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety,
Environmental, Crime & Disorder)
Failure to manage risk can result in legal action and costs

Name of Head of Service
Job Title
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43385
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Page 26

Ryedale District Council
Draft Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
Scope of Responsibility
Ryedale District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money allocated to it is
safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The
Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. In discharging this overall
responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, including
arrangements for the management of risk.
This statement is prepared with consideration to the CIPFA Application of the Good
Governance Framework 2020/21 (CIPFA Bulletin 06).

Purpose of the Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by
which the Council directs and controls its activities, and how it leads, engages with and is
accountable to the community it serves. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of
its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of
appropriate, cost-effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to an acceptable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the
Council’s aims and objectives, but it seeks to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify, prioritise
and manage the risks to the achievement of the Council’s aims and objectives.
The governance framework has been in place at Ryedale District Council for the year ended
31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual statement of accounts.
The Council’s Governance Framework addresses the way the Council is controlled and
managed, both strategically and operationally, and how it will deliver its services. The
Framework recognises that the Council’s business is focused upon its corporate priorities
and seeks to facilitate delivery to our local communities of the goals set out in the Corporate
Plan. To improve the effectiveness of this, the Council has built on the Health Checks
commissioned in 2018 and 2019 by implementing action plans and strengthening capacity in
areas described below. Further reviews - such as by the Society for innovation, technology
and modernisation SOCITM - have been undertaken in a spirit of continuous improvement
and a new Council Plan 2020-24 is in place..
The structures and processes, risk management and other internal control systems, such as
standards of conduct, form part of this Framework, which is about managing the barriers to
achieving the Council’s objectives.
1

Page 27

Members and senior officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of the Council’s affairs and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal.
Following the appointment of a new Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer in Autumn and
Summer 2018, this task is now managed by the Strategic Management Board, Head of
Corporate Governance and other senior managers, who have commissioned and taken
action to address governance related issues. This includes briefing relevant Committees for
consideration. Overview and Scrutiny have also pursued a robust approach to strengthening
governance arrangements in key areas such as risk management. A review of capacity in
Corporate Governance has also taken place and a new structure was implemented during
2020/21.
The Council has designed systems and processes to regulate, monitor and control its
activities in order to achieve its vision and objectives.

The key elements of the Council’s Governance Framework are as follows:

The Council’s key priorities during 2020/21 were reflected in its Council Plan 202024, which was approved by Full Council in September 2020. This sets out the
following key aims:
o Support strong, inclusive and attractive communities
o Harness Ryedale's unique economy to deliver growth, homes and jobs
o Create an environment that is sustainable, safe and clean
o Develop our organisation as an innovative, enterprising Council



The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made, and
the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are lawful, efficient, transparent
and accountable to local people. This incorporates the Members’ Code of Conduct
and a number of other locally agreed codes and protocols.



The Council’s budget and policy framework is set by the full Council. The Policy and
Resources Committee has delegated authority to operate and make decisions within
the framework. Some powers are delegated to senior officers.



In addition to the Policy and Resources Committee there are two specific regulatory
committees for Licensing and Planning. These have independent powers within their
legislative framework. Each of these acts within defined terms of reference agreed by
the full Council.



Throughout 2020/21 Council committee meetings were held remotely and, when
possible, hybrid meetings using MS Teams. They have been broadcast to be able to
be viewed by members of the public.



During the pandemic some decisions were made under urgency procedures by the
Chief Executive following consultation with relevant political representatives.
Decisions made under urgency procedures are recorded on the Council’s committee
management system. At the next available Full Council meeting all such decisions
are reported.



The Overview and Scrutiny Committee acting as a Corporate Governance Standards
Committee has monitored standards of conduct of Members and advised the Council
on probity issues. Entries made in the Register of Members’ Interests were reviewed
2

Page 28

by the Monitoring Officer.


Council decisions are subject to review by the Council’s Scrutiny function, which has
the ability to call-in and review decisions and also to contribute to the development of
policy.



The committee management system (modern.gov) enables the recording, tracking
and monitoring of committee agenda, minutes, reports and decision records.



Council meetings are open to the public except when exempt or confidential matters
are being disclosed. During 2020/21 this has been accomplished by introducing
Remote Meeting Rules within the Constitution and broadcasting remote meetings, as
well as making them available to view afterwards on YouTube. The public have an
opportunity to participate in some of the meetings. This has been facilitated by
initially asking people to provide questions in advance of the meeting and latterly by
providing access to the remote meeting via MSTeams. Since the ending of legislation
permitting remote meetings on 7th May 2021 the Council has facilitated face to face
covid secure council meetings. Meetings are streamed live using MSTeams and
YouTube. They continue to be open to the public.



A number of areas are delegated to officers for the purposes of decision-making;
however, limits on the exercise of delegation are laid down in the Council’s
Constitution. The Council also has a specific delegation scheme for Planning which is
published on the website.



The Council has adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance



The Council has a Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy, covering 2020-24 and a
Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy, which are reviewed annually. A revised
strategy and policy were approved by Overview and Scrutiny (acting as Audit)
Committee in January 2021. The Council also has separate Speak Out and Anti
Money Laundering Policies. The Council employs Veritau to provide a counter fraud
service.



The Chief Executive post is also an Assistant Chief Executive at North Yorkshire
County Council (NYCC). The two councils are working together to support
efficiencies and deliver improved services through effective partnership working.



The Head of Corporate Governance also acts as the Council’s Monitoring Officer.
The appointment of a Monitoring Officer is required in accordance with Section 5 of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. It is the function of the Monitoring
Officer to report to Members upon any contravention of any enactment or rule of law
or any maladministration by the Authority. The Monitoring Officer also has
responsibilities relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct.



The Chief Finance Officer (s151) (a joint role employed by NYCC where the
postholder is an Assistant Director for Strategic Resources) is the officer with
statutory responsibility for the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs,
in accordance with the Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. In compliance
with CIPFA’s “Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government”, Ryedale is in full compliance as the Chief Officer (s151) is a member
of the Strategic Management Board.



Both the Statutory Officers referred to above have unfettered access to information,
3

Page 29

to the Chief Executive and to Members of the Council in order that they can
discharge their responsibilities effectively. The functions of these Officers and their
roles are clearly set out in the Council’s Constitution.


Financial sustainability is a key risk for the Council and a robust financial
management framework is fundamental to managing and mitigating that risk. It
comprises:
o
o

o

o
o
o
o
o

Financial and Contract Procedure Rules as part of the Constitution;
A Financial Strategy which provides the framework for financial planning –
projecting high level resources and spending over 10 years, it identifies the
short, medium and long term financial issues the Council is dealing with and
its approach to managing reserves;
Medium-term financial planning using a three-year cycle, updated annually, to
align resources to corporate priorities. Due to the impact of Covid-19 a
revised budget and medium term financial strategy was approved by the
Council in September 2020.
Service and financial planning integrated within the corporate performance
management cycle and linked to the Council’s corporate objectives;
Annual budget process involving scrutiny and challenge;
Quarterly monitoring by management of revenue and capital budgets – with
regular reports to Policy and Resources Committee;
Production annually of a Statement of Accounts compliant with the
requirements of local authority accounting practice;
Compliance with requirements established by CIPFA.



Corporate programme, which is produced with explicit goals and associated
performance targets related to the delivery of the Council Plan 2020-2024 in order to
ensure that achievement of performance is measurable;



The Council’s staff performance approach links personal objectives directly to the
corporate programme and ultimately to the Council Plan 2020-2024;



Regular reports to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on complaints and
compliments



The Council maintains a professional relationship with Grant Thornton, the body
responsible for the external audit of the Council. Regular review meetings are held
with the Chief Executive and s151 Officer and reports presented to Audit Committee



Recruitment and selection procedures are based on recognised good practice and all
staff posts have a formal job description and competency-based person specification.
Services are delivered and managed by staff with the necessary knowledge and
expertise with training needs identified via the formal appraisal process



Pay is governed by a Pay Policy considered and approved annually by Council.



A revised approach to managing risk has been adopted in recent years.
o This has led to an overhaul of the Corporate Risk Register and the
development of Service Risk Registers. Advice and guidance has been
provided by Veritau and in some cases by North Yorkshire County Council.
This work has been recognised and endorsed by members who see it as an
4

Page 30

o
o
o
o
o

important part of the Council’s improvement strategy. As part of that, an
update on Risk Management, including the Corporate Risk Register, is
presented to Audit Committee twice a year.
A Risk Management guidance document has been developed for key staff
along with risk management training;
The maintenance of the Corporate Risk Register comprising risks for the
Council as a whole, assigned to designated officers, with appropriate countermeasures and an action plan established for each key risk;
As well as presentation of this to Committee, Strategic Management Board
also keeps the corporate risk management arrangements under review and
examine and challenge this and service risk registers
Management and Internal Audit of a risk-based approach in the preparation
and delivery of the audit plan;
Officers of the Council are required to consider risk management issues when
submitting reports to Committees and Council for consideration by Member.
This includes managing risks around equalities, safeguarding and health and
safety.



The Council has established a Corporate Information Governance Group (CIGG) in
order to address the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
which came into effect on 25th May 2018. The Council’s Senior Information Risk
Owner (SIRO) is the Head of Corporate Governance. The CIGG includes
representatives from Veritau, who have been engaged as the Council’s Data
Protection Officer (DPO), a requirement of the GDPR. Veritau provide regular
updates to the Audit Committee.



The maintenance of an adequate and effective system of Internal Audit is a
requirement of the Accounts & Audit Regulations. Internal Audit is provided by
Veritau North Yorkshire Ltd. (VNY), which is part of the Veritau group. The work of
Internal Audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. In accordance with these standards Internal
Audit is required to prepare an audit plan on at least an annual basis.



Internal Audit examines and evaluates the adequacy of the Council’s system of
internal controls as a contribution to ensuring that resources are used in an
economical, efficient and effective manner. Internal Audit is an independent and
objective appraisal function established by the Council for reviewing the system of
internal control.



The audit plan is informed by the Council’s main strategic risks. This is intended to
ensure limited audit resources are prioritised towards those systems which are
considered to be the most risky and/or which contribute the most to the achievement
of the Council’s priorities and objectives.



The Council seeks to ensure resources are utilised in the most economic, effective
and efficient manner whilst delivering continuous improvement. It aims to achieve this
by a variety of means including the following:
o
o
o

Service/process transformation and efficiency reviews;
Working with partners;
External and Internal Audit feedback.

5

Page 31

Review of Effectiveness
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of
effectiveness is informed by:




the Annual Internal Audit Assurance opinion, as provided by Veritau North Yorkshire;
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and
inspectorates;
the Overview & Scrutiny Committee review that the elements of the governance
framework are in place and effective, to ensure compliance with the principles. They
also reviewed the system of internal audit and concluded it was effective and
remained a key source of assurance for the Council in 2020/21.

The Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committee process has provided challenge and has
monitored the Council’s policies and performance on an ongoing basis, albeit during
2020/21, a number of meetings did not take place due to COVID. Nevertheless, the
Members of O&S have worked together, adopting a non-political approach, developing and
using their knowledge and expertise, and that of others to the best effect. An evidencebased approach to the O&S work has been instrumental in achieving good results. COVID
impacted on the Committee’s work, but it did receive a report from Everyone Active on
delivery of the leisure contract and reviewed progress on implementation of the Climate
Change Action Plan.
In addition to receiving regular reports on Treasury Management, Risk and Complaints, the
Committee supported the Head of Corporate Governance’s proposals for two standards
sessions to be delivered in June and July. These were



A workshop on member-officer relations, and
A training session on standards and probity for elected members.

The Committee also agreed that scoping reports be drawn up for the following topics:




Affordable Housing
Review of Enforcement
Performance Appraisal System

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee also received reports on:







A new Officer Code of Conduct, which it recommended for approval to Council
Standards Training
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Report and Annual Letter
Update on Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA)
Safer Ryedale and the Community Safety Plan
CIPFA Financial Management Code

The Council is dedicated to ensuring that its resources are utilised in the most effective and
efficient manner whilst delivering continuous improvement. Work has been undertaken
during the year to ensure members were fully informed of, and involved in, shaping the
budget strategy ahead of key meetings in February 2021.

6

Page 32

New financial monitoring arrangements introduced part way through 2018/19 have been and
were in place for the full financial year, giving outturn estimates to members on a quarterly
basis which can now be seen as being consistent with the final actual outturn position.
During 2020/21, these reports were expanded to include the most recent financial
information and projections on costs arising from the pandemic
To improve the Council’s effectiveness of this, capacity and additional support is now in
place in services such as Health and Safety, Corporate Governance and Finance, IT,
Communications, Transformation, Legal and Procurement. Additional support for Strategy
and Performance was due to be implemented in 2020/21, progress has been delayed as a
consequence of COVID management and mitigation but new staff are now in place.
Based on the assurance work undertaken by Internal Audit, the Head of Internal Audit
(Veritau) has provided an opinion on the adequacy of the control environment which
concluded that this gave reasonable assurance and also recognised that the Council has
made good progress in the last few years to improve its governance arrangements.
It should also be emphasised that Covid-19 has significantly affected the authority over the
last year, with a wide-ranging impact on business operations and controls. While the work of
internal audit is directed to the areas that are most at risk, or provide most value for the
authority it is not possible to conclude on the full extent of the impact of Covid-19 on the
operations of the authority. No reliance was placed on the work of other assurance bodies in
reaching this opinion. Areas in which controls are below the required standard are reported
initially to the relevant Manager who ensures prompt corrective action is taken, and
ultimately to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee who monitor progress with improvements
via follow up reports from Internal Audit.
Key systems were audited in 2020/21 and a number of audit reports and other pieces of
work were provided to management and the O&S Committee.
In November 2020 the Council’s external auditors (Grant Thornton) provided the Council
with an unqualified opinion on the Council’s accounts within their Annual Audit and
Inspection letter. The opinion also noted a full year’s worth of progress in areas such as
financial monitoring and risk management that commenced only partway through the
previous financial year. We expect the 2020/21 opinion (due in November 2021) to be in line
with this also.
A new Council Plan was adopted in September 2020; the corporate programme to deliver
this, and its underpinning performance framework is currently in development. Progression
through the democratic process will take place in due course. The Council’s People and
Culture Plan and Council Plan, details key milestones and measures for success relating to
organisational development.

Coronavirus

There has been a significant impact on Council services of the coronavirus pandemic from
March 2020. Despite the challenges, the Council has maintained consistent essential
services for residents, whilst adapting to provide alternative virtual services wherever
possible.

7

Page 33

A decision was taken on 20 March 2020 to suspend Council meetings. For a significant time
during 2020/2 the Chief Executive took decisions on urgent matters after consultation with
the Leader of the Council, and where appropriate, the Chairman of the appropriate
Committee and the relevant Ward Member(s). Committee and Council meetings resumed in
September 2020.
Meetings follow government guidance on making these COVID secure and comply with
relevant legislation.
Returns to MHCLG, decision-notices and a financial tracker were maintained throughout the
use of urgency powers to track the detail of decisions made and the financial impact. These
were reported to Full Council in September 2020.

Key Issues
No system of governance or internal control can provide absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance.
It is stressed that no system of control can provide absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. In concluding this overview of the Council’s governance arrangements,
a number of issues have been identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous
improvement in the Governance Framework. The aim is to address these issues during the
2021/22 financial year, by way of an action plan for improving the governance framework
and system of internal control. This will be subject to monitoring by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.
The most significant issues for the Council to address during 2021/22 will be those resulting
from the residual impacts of the pandemic and also Local Government Reorganisation
(LGR).

8

Page 34

Key Issues
In the 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement, seven key issues were identified. All of these ongoing and will be continued (but
amended) in the new version.
This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is stressed that no system of control can provide absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. In concluding this overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, a number of issues have
been identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous improvement in the Governance Framework. The aim is to address
these weaknesses during the 2021/22 financial year, by way of an action plan for improving the governance framework and system of
internal control. This will be subject to monitoring by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
1. Financial Sustainability

Page 35

Accountable
Officer:
Control Issue

s151 Officer
On-going and future changes to the Council’s financial framework including several changes to national and local
funding regimes will increase the financial pressure on the Council and risk profile.
This needs to be matched with effective financial management on the part of members and officers.
This Control Issue was revised in 2020/21 to include dealing with the ongoing impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic. As
a result of our monitoring we correctly identified at an early stage that resources from central government did not cover
the full costs to Ryedale District Council of the pandemic.

Actions

The agreed Medium Term Financial Strategy of the Council highlights the expected need to make future savings. This
informs the budget process for future years.
The s151 Officer considers the risk as part of the closure of accounts including the need to make appropriate provisions
and reserves at the year-end.
Ensure effective budget management is in operation across the Council, including accurate data and forecasting and
reporting to members. Ensure that members are kept aware of all relevant financial information to assist in budget
setting in future years.
9

The MTFS will also take into account the ongoing impact of the Coronavirus pandemic (see below).
The financial impact of LGR will be a major feature in 2021/22 – if it goes ahead.
Progress Report

This is a Key Issue which has formed part of the AGS for a number of years, and it is expected that this will continue to
be the case.
A revised Financial Strategy was approved by Council in February 2021 and members were consulted during the
preparation of the budget through reports and briefings.
Financial monitoring is now fully in place and has explicitly included the impact of COVID in 2020/21. This will continue in
2021/22 and we will continue to complete a monthly tracker which can be submitted to central government. Through this
we will continue to lobby for additional costs that cannot be funded by the council.

Page 36

Reviews on additional services are undertaken to ensure that required capacity is funded and resources managed
effectively; this remains critical as the impact of Covid 19 continues to impact on service demand in key areas of
business. This increased demand is not anticipated as lessening during 2021/22.
The financial impact of Local Government Review will require careful consideration with regard to use of resources and
financial impact as will ongoing monitoring of impact of EU exit
A revised MTFS will be developed in the following months and brought to members during he autumn to P&R. This will
continue to be updated over the following months until formal approval is expected in February by Council.
Improvements have been made in procurement to ensure better value for money. In addition to the point made at 8
below, this has included:
 Centralising IT budgets to maintain management grip on applications costs
 Contract Management Training
 Introduction of a forward procurement plan

10

2. Waste and Recycling Review
Accountable
Officer:
Control Issue
Actions

Head of Waste and Environmental Services.
To ensure that RDC achieves efficient and effective waste and recycling collection.
Implementation of new optimised household waste and recycling collections linked to new recycling vehicles and waste
transfer station.
A piece of work on route optimisation will be completed.
Delivery programme of new recycling vehicle to be completed in 2020/21.

Progress Report

This was highlighted as a Key Issue in the 2018/19 AGS and continues to be an area of focus driven by organisational
need and national policy change.

Page 37

Significant operational demands were faced during 2020/21 as residents were spending more time at home due to the
Covid lockdown periods. This resulted in unprecedented variations in tonnages presented for collection and operational
collections were changed to manage the completion of existing rounds with minimal disruption to household waste and
recycling services.
The new recycling vehicle became operational during 2021/22 following significant vehicle modifications.
The implementation of the new optimised household waste and recycling collection rounds has been rescheduled later in
2021/22 (subject to Covid policy directives) now that this new vehicle is in service and given that the country is now
emerging from restrictions.
In addition, national policy directives are expected during 2020/21, as is a decision about local government reform.
These factors will all be taken into account when moving forward.
There is ring-fenced investment in place to facilitate this including a new vehicle replacement programme, which was
approved as part of the capital programme for the period 2021/22 to 2024/25, and a streetscene transformation capacity
funding which was agreed as part of the 2021/22 revenue budget.

11

3. The Local Plan

Accountable
Officer:
Control Issue

Head of Planning and Regulatory Services.

Actions

Review of the development plan as the Local Plan Strategy was seven years old when this was first developed.

The Local Plan requires review and adoption. This Project is ongoing, beginning in 2020/21 and will continue until
adoption. This is estimated to be summer 2023 based on members’ current agreements to a limited review of the Plan
taking place

This will highlight expected levels of development that will take place in the District and will set out the specific types of
new development required to meet Ryedale’s needs.

Page 38

Progress Report

This has been highlighted as a Key Issue since the 2018/19 AGS (for action in 2019/20).
Some delay in early stages of the review by the Local Plan Working Party (LPWP) arising from the Covid outbreak and
capacity in the officer team. A timetable for future meetings has also been established. Formal adoption of the review is
likely to be July 2023 as set out in the Local Development Scheme (subject to the outcome of the examination and
LGR). It should also be noted that this is an area of significant policy interest at a national level, and this may have a
bearing on the overall timetable.
The target dates for the plan have been agreed by members who also agreed that there would be a limited review of the
plan in order to hit the submission for examination targets dates in advance of any local government restructure.

The Sites Document was formally adopted on 29 June 2020 as scheduled.
Member approved the new Local Development Scheme in February 2021 and the Council’s Statement of Community
Involvement was approved in March 2021.
Work on the collation of evidence to inform initial public consultation and a Call for Sites consultation which ended on 6
July 2021.

12

4. Resilience and Capacity
Accountable
Officer:
Control Issue

Head of HR
To ensure sufficient capacity to enable the Council to carry out strategic and/or operational objectives.
This also includes HR policies and procedures - review and approval, including staffing aspects of Equality and Diversity.

Actions

Continuous review of the new arrangements now in place.
HR policies should be fit for purpose. Documents should grow and adapt with an organisation. Policy review and
revision is a crucial part of an effective policy and procedure management plan.

Progress Report

Page 39

Action plan towards developing level for the Equality Framework for Local Government with respect to staffing matters.
This was initially highlighted as a Key Issue in the 2018/19 AGS (for action in 2019/20). The Action was that actions from
a comprehensive Health Check of HR were followed up and implemented.
Capacity and additional support has been put in place in services such as Health and Safety, Enforcement, Planning &
Regulatory Services, Corporate Governance, Finance, IT, Communications, Transformation, Legal, Revenues and
Benefits and Procurement. Additional support for Strategy and Performance was planned for implementation in 2020/21,
but was delayed by the need to prioritise Covid-19. This is now in place (June 2021).
15 HR policies have now been reviewed and either approved by Council or in the process of gaining approval. A rolling
programme of the 5 remaining policies will come through democratic meetings for approval during 2021/22.
Additional resources were secured during the Covid-19 pandemic to support key areas of the business to function e.g.
customer services advisors. However this is constantly under review and pressures in capacity are exacerbated by the
work that has been undertaken and is likely to increase on LGR. Therefore this will continue to be reviewed during
2021/22 and brought to members’ attention where additional capacity is required. This was highlighted in the Financial
Strategy presented to Full Council in February 2021.
Any available further updates will be provided in the final AGS.

13

5. Economic Recovery and Growth
Accountable
Officers

Programme Director - Economic Development.
Head of Customer Services and Communities.

Control Issue
Actions

Economic Recovery and Growth.
Delivering a strong, sustainable economy will need to now take account of the recovery required post-Covid to address
the long-term, sustainable economic success of the district. This includes addressing the needs of those who are
experiencing poverty and severely reduced income as a consequence of the pandemic.
Submission of York/North Yorkshire devolution asks to Government were agreed by Elected Members. Submission has
occurred and councils across York and North Yorkshire are continuing to ask for a negotiation process with Government
to begin.

Page 40

A plan for leaving the European Union is also critical given the impact this may have on many businesses. Component
parts of the proposed devolution deal relating to thriving businesses, strong job opportunities, robust infrastructure, and
strong culture, tourism and low carbon sectors, are aiming to be progressed through bids into new Government funding
tranches (e.g. Community Renewal Funding, Levelling Up) that are replacing EU funding tranches.
Inclusive growth is also key to mitigate the increasing levels of poverty that are arising from the consequences of Covid 19. This includes a focus on partnership initiatives with other key bodies including Town and Parish Councils, NYCC and
the voluntary and community sector.
Progress Report

This was highlighted as a Key Issue in the 2018/19 AGS but was revised last year to take account of the recovery
required post-COVID
Examples of Economic Development work carried out in 2020/21 include
 the provision of free public wifi in the market towns of Malton, Pickering and Helmsley
 securing external funding from the Local Growth Fund to undertake initial feasibility work on a number of projects
including a Ryedale Business Centre,
 further work on the installation of additional EV charging points throughout Ryedale including in RDC car parks,
at Ryedale House and at the RDC Depot on Showfield Lane, Malton.

14

In addition to this, during 2020/21, a key focus was on providing immediate support to businesses. This included
handling increased service demands and direct action to enable businesses to trade safely (e.g. environmental health,
community officer roles in Covid secure management, increased benefits claims and housing applications). Grants to
business and individuals have been made as quickly and effectively as possible to ease distress and protect lives and
livelihoods (e.g. self-isolation, a variety of business grants).
The Council’s actions to support economic recovery are aligned to the Council Plan and have also been progressed as
part of the regional Local Resilience Forum arrangements.
Ryedale is also playing a key role in the management of poverty across York and North Yorkshire, with the Head of
Customer Services and Communities acting as the Deputy Chair.

Page 41
15

6. Climate Change

Accountable
Officers

Programme Director - Economic Development.

Control Issue

Delivering the Climate Change Action Plan to ensure that Ryedale District Council can contribute towards the reduction
in global temperature rise.
Progressing Action Plan delivery through numerous projects which include operations, partnerships with public, private,
voluntary sectors and Ryedale Environmental sectors and residents, building and assets, transport and vehicles.

Actions

Completion of the review of the Council’s Biodiversity Action Plan in March 2022.
Progress Report

Page 42

This was highlighted as a Key Issue in the 2018/19 AGS (for action in 2019/20) and specifically to review and enact the
Action Plan. This has been done and taken into account in the update below.
Agreed three-year revenue budget in place to support delivery.
Climate Change Officer currently being recruited.

Current achievements include:






delivery of LED street lighting across Malton and Norton;
delivery of 15 additional Electric Vehicle charging points (Malton, Norton and Pickering);
delivery of 11.4 mile Malton – Pickering cycle route enhancements;
securing HNDU funding for a local geothermal project in partnership with Third Energy;
development work on Circular Malton, through an anaerobic digester project feasibility study progression in
partnership with local groups; this could see the reuse of the district’s organic waste

16

7. Council Plan
Accountable
Officers
Control Issue
Actions
Progress Report

CX
A Council Plan is a necessary strategic document for guiding the work programme for the organisation and its
employees. The current Council Plan was adopted in September 2020.
Now the Council Plan is adopted, a corporate programme and underpinning performance framework is being developed.
This will be subject to democratic decision-making in due course.
This was highlighted as a Key Issue in the 2018/19 AGS (for action in 2019/20) and specifically noted that there would
be a revision of the Plan and its priorities. This was achieved.
A series of engagement sessions took place with Elected Members and officers to produce the new Council Plan, which
was adopted by Council in September 2020. It highlights four main priorities as below:

Page 43

1.
2.
3.
4.

Our communities: strong, inclusive and attractive
Our economy: harnessing Ryedale’s unique economy to deliver growth, homes and jobs
Our environment: a sustainable, safe and clean place to live
Our organisation: an innovative, enterprising council.

A corporate programme is being delivered to achieve the objectives set out in the Council Plan; the reporting mechanism
for this is Policy and Resources. An annual report of performance for 2020/21 will be presented in July 2021 with
quarterly reporting from September 2021 onwards.

17

This page is intentionally left blank

Ryedale District Council

Page 45

Agenda Item 10

Commercial in confidence

Page 46

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 47

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 48
Local auditor reporting on local government in England - Committee of Public Accounts - House of Commons (parliament.uk)

Commercial in confidence

Page 49

Commercial in confidence

Page 50

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•

Page 51

•

Commercial in confidence

•

•
.

Page 52

•

•
•

•
•
•
•

•

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•

More
meaningful
and timely
reporting

Maximising
the value
from
auditor’s
work

Page 53
•

More
freedom to
reflect local
context

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

Commercial in confidence

Page 54

Commercial in confidence

•
•

Page 55
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Commercial in confidence

•
•

•
•

•

Page 56

•
•

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 57
•
•
•

Commercial in confidence

Page 58

Commercial in confidence

•
•

Page 59
•
•
•
•

Commercial in confidence

Page 60

Commercial in confidence

Page 61

Page 62

Agenda Item 11

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

28 JULY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

SECTION 151 OFFICER (ANTON HODGE)

TITLE OF REPORT:

INTERNAL AUDIT AND COUNTER FRAUD ANNUAL
REPORT 2020/21

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

In accordance with part 5 of the Council’s Audit Charter, ‘The Head of Internal Audit
is required to provide an annual report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The
report will be used by the Committee to inform its consideration of the Council’s
annual governance statement.’

1.2

The report summarises the outcomes of audit work undertaken in 2020/21 and
provides an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s
internal control arrangements.

1.3

The report also updates the committee on counter fraud work undertaken in 2020/21.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

Members are asked to:
a) note the results of the audit and counter fraud work undertaken in 2020/21.
b) note the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit regarding the overall framework
of governance, risk management and control operating within the Council.
c) note that no significant control weaknesses have been identified by internal
audit during the year which are relevant to the preparation of the annual
governance statement.
d) note the outcome of the quality assurance and improvement programme and
the confirmation that the internal audit service conforms with the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The committee is responsible for considering reports on the results of internal audit
work, in accordance with its terms of reference and the Council’s Audit Charter; and
in line with the requirements of Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 63

28 July 2021

4.1

The Council will fail to comply with proper practice requirements for internal audit,
and the Council’s Audit Charter, if the results of audit work are not considered by an
appropriate committee.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The work of internal audit supports the Council’s overall aims and priorities by
promoting probity, integrity and honesty and by helping support the Council to
become a more effective organisation.

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The work of internal audit is governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
and the Council’s Audit Charter. These require the Head of Internal Audit to bring an
annual report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The report must include an
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance,
risk management and control. The annual report is included at annex 1 to this report.

6.2

Internal audit services are provided to the council by Veritau, which also provides a
counter fraud service. An annual report setting out counter fraud activity and
performance is also included as part of this report, and is included at annex 2.

6.3

The results of completed audit work have been reported to relevant officers during
the year. Details of the audits finalised since the last report to this committee in April
2021 are included in appendix B to the supporting report contained in annex 1. The
quality assurance and improvement programme is shown in appendix D.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b) Legal
None
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Anton Hodge
Section 151 Officer
Authors:

Connor Munro Audit Manager
The Veritau Group
connor.munro@veritau.co.uk
Jonathan Dodsworth, Assistant Director – Corporate Fraud
The Veritau Group
jonathan.dodsworth@veritau.co.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 64

28 July 2021

1

ANNUAL HEAD OF INTERNAL REPORT 2020/21
28 July 2021
ANNEX 1

Page 65

2

CONTENTS
Background

4

Internal audit
work carried out

4

Follow up of
agreed actions

6

Professional
standards

6

Opinion of the Head of Internal Audit

Appendix A

7

9

2020/21 internal audit work

Appendix B
Summary of key issues from audits finalised since the last
report to the committee

Appendix C
Audit opinions and priorities for actions

Appendix D
Internal audit – quality assurance and improvement programme

Page 66

10

13

14

3

Connor Munro

Max Thomas

Audit Manager

Head of Internal Audit

Circulation list: Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 67

4

BACKGROUND
1

The work of internal audit is governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) and the Council’s audit charter. These require the Head
of Internal Audit to bring an annual report to the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee. The report must include an opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk management
and control. The report should also include:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

any qualifications to the opinion, together with the reasons for those
qualifications (including any impairment to independence or
objectivity)
any particular control weakness judged to be relevant to the
preparation of the annual governance statement
a summary of work undertaken to support the opinion including any
reliance placed on the work of other assurance bodies
an overall summary of internal audit performance and the results of
the internal audit service’s quality assurance and improvement
programme, including a statement on conformance with the PSIAS

INTERNAL AUDIT WORK CARRIED OUT IN 2020/21
2

During the last year, the Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact
on the Council’s working practices. In addition, much of the Council’s
resources have been directed towards responding to Covid-related issues.
This has also impacted upon the work of internal audit. Routine audit work
was suspended during the initial national lockdown, with resource diverted
to providing guidance on fraud risks and supplier relief, and other ad-hoc
support and advice.

3

Due to the suspension of meetings during the pandemic, the internal audit
work programme for 2020/21 was not approved by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee until 22 October 2020. The delayed commencement of
2020/21 internal audit work was as a result of the need for the Council to
prioritise its response to the coronavirus pandemic. Routine audit work
restarted during quarter three in areas less directly involved in response
and recovery and has been ongoing since then, with all audit work being
undertaken remotely.

4

Senior managers have continued to support delivery of internal audit work
as far as they have been able since our last report to this Committee in
April. However, given the ongoing response to the coronavirus and
recovery efforts, and the related impact on availability of Council staff
throughout the whole of 2020/21, timelines for completion of audit work
have slipped. Consequently, we currently have a higher level of outstanding
2020/21 work than would normally be expected at this point.

5

As has previously been reported to this committee, we have also had to
defer a number of audits to 2021/22 where there was either a lack of
capacity to be able to support the audit or where it was no longer considered
a priority for the current audit year. For clarity, these are listed below:

Page 68

5


ICT: it was agreed with the Head of Service that audit resource
would be best utilised in 2021/22 after the Council has
implemented Office 365 and made other key infrastructure
improvements.



Environmental health: the service has been operating in a very
demanding environment due to the pressures of the coronavirus
pandemic and the EU transition. It was agreed with senior
managers that the audit be rescheduled to 2021/22 in light of this.



Health and safety: it was agreed with senior managers that the
audit be deferred until there is more capacity within the Council to
support an audit in this area and so that it can provide assurance
on arrangements following an eventual return to the office.



Information governance (information security checks): the
vast majority of staff have been working remotely and, through the
year, the Government’s guidance has remained to work from home
wherever possible. In light of this, it was agreed with senior
managers that the audit be rescheduled to 2021/22 when it is more
appropriate to perform an audit of physical information security
arrangements. The move to remote working has also introduced
other information security risks which will be factored into future
work in this area.



Debtors: when scoping the main financial system audits we were
advised by officers that the level of sundry debt is low and that
collection activity has also been low. Other main financial system
audits (main accounting system, creditors and payroll) were
therefore prioritised for review in 2020/21. Debt collection and
enforcement, taking a wider view of the Council’s receivables and
the impact of Covid-19 on these, is a priority area for inclusion in
the 2021/22 work programme.



Contract management and procurement: it was agreed with
senior managers that this work be deferred to 2021/22 and rescoped so as to provide support and advice around the ongoing
financial support package in place with the Council’s leisure
provider, Everyone Active.

6

Days from deferred audits have been used during 2020/21 to fund
additional work of internal audit in delivering the business grant scheme
post payment assurance review alongside Veritau’s counter fraud team and
certifying the Local Authority Compliance and Enforcement Grant. The days
have also been used to allow for further work to be undertaken on a small
number of key audits in the plan, for example on Waste & Street Scene,
creditors, and insurance. As well as this, we have used the available time to
provide support and advice to the Council’s Change Advisory Board and
other stakeholders in the redesign of the lettings management system, and
to Financial Services in responding to external audit information requests.

7

A summary of internal audit work undertaken during the year is included in
appendix A, below.

Page 69

6
8

We will continue to prioritise the conclusion of remaining 2020/21 audit
work over the coming weeks. Strategic Management Board also recognise
that we have needed to reflect the reduction in the scope and volume of
assurance work completed in 2020/21 in our annual opinion. The extent of
this limitation has now been determined and is explained at paragraphs 16
-18.

9

Appendix B, below, provides details of the key findings arising from internal
audit assignments completed, that we have not previously reported to the
committee.

10

In 2020/21, Veritau adopted new standard opinions and definitions
recommended by CIPFA. The changes are not significant but it has meant a
reduction in the number of assurance levels in use from five to four.
Appendix C provides an explanation of our assurance levels and priorities
for management action.

FOLLOW UP OF AGREED ACTIONS
11

All actions agreed with services as a result of internal audit work are
followed up to ensure that underlying control weaknesses are addressed.
Due to the pandemic, follow up of agreed actions was suspended until the
latter part of 2020/21 where it has now recommenced, focusing on higher
priority actions. As a result of this work, we are generally satisfied that
sufficient progress is being made to address the control weaknesses
identified in previous audits. Where further assurances are required, for
example in respect of Transparency Code compliance, the relevant areas
will either be subject to targeted follow-up reviews in 2021/22 or included
as part of other audits in the work programme.

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS
12

In order to comply with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) the
Head of Internal Audit is required to develop and maintain an ongoing
quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP). The objective of
the QAIP is to ensure that working practices continue to conform to
professional standards. The results of the QAIP are reported to the
committee each year as part of the annual report. The QAIP consists of
various elements, including:






maintenance of a detailed audit procedures manual and standard
operating practices
ongoing performance monitoring of internal audit activity
regular customer feedback
training plans and associated training and development activities
periodic self-assessments of internal audit working practices (to
evaluate conformance to the standards)

Page 70

7

13

External assessments must be conducted at least once every five years by
a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the
organisation. The most recent external assessment of Veritau internal audit
working practices was undertaken in November 20181. This concluded that
Veritau internal audit activity generally conforms to the PSIAS2.

14

The outcome of the recently completed self-assessment demonstrates that
the service continues to generally conform to the PSIAS, including the Code
of Ethics and the Standards. Further details of the QAIP are given in
appendix D.

15

The Internal Audit Charter sets out how internal audit at the Council will be
provided in accordance with the PSIAS. The Charter is reviewed on an
annual basis and any proposed changes are brought to the Overview &
Scrutiny Committee. No changes are proposed at this time.

OPINION OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT
16

Due to the significant reduction in audit coverage in 2020/21 (as detailed in
paragraph 5), the results of the work carried out by internal audit – taken
together with other sources of assurance – are not sufficient to support a
comprehensive Head of Internal Audit annual opinion on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance,
risk management and control.

17

As a result, the opinion relates to risk management, governance and
control only insofar as the audit work that has been concluded or
substantially completed to this point; and where it has been possible to
place a degree of reliance on other existing arrangements based on
discussion with senior managers and key officers, and review of key
sources of evidence3.

18

In the context of this limitation of scope, the overall opinion of the Head of
Internal Audit on the framework of governance, risk management and
control operating at the Council is that it provides Reasonable Assurance.
There are no significant control weaknesses identified from internal audit
work which, in the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit, need to be
considered for inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement.

Reported to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee in January 2019
PSIAS guidance suggests a scale of three ratings, ‘generally conforms, ‘partially conforms’ and
‘does not conform’. ‘Generally conforms’ is the top rating.
3 In providing an annual opinion, there are a number of key aspects of risk management,
governance and control that need to be considered (for example, financial governance and
performance, strategic planning, procurement and contract management, programme and project
management, and ICT governance) and a number of related key processes or indicators which
provide a degree of insight into the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. As part of
the process for arriving at this opinion, conversations were held with, and information obtained
from, senior managers and other key officers to obtain supplementary evidence in these key
areas. Due to the nature of the evidence and the lack of audit procedures applied, the level of
reliance that can be placed on this information is lower but is nonetheless still relevant in arriving
at the annual opinion.
1
2

Page 71

8

19

Furthermore, in giving the opinion, we would note that Covid-19 has
significantly affected the Council over the last year, with a wide ranging
impact on business operations and controls. While the work of internal audit
is directed to the areas that are most at risk, or provide most value for the
Council, it is not possible to conclude on the full extent of the impact of
Covid-19 on the Council’s operations and risks.

20

A limitation of scope should not be confused with an adverse opinion. An
adverse opinion is one that is given when sufficient work has been
completed by internal audit to enable the Head of Internal Audit to
reasonably conclude that arrangements are not adequate and effective. A
limitation of scope has been necessary this year as internal audit is unable
to draw on sufficient assurance to give a full opinion.

Page 72

9

APPENDIX A: 2020/21 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK
Audit

Status

Assurance Level

Risk management

Completed

Support and advice provided

Creditors

Final

Reasonable Assurance

Main accounting system

Final

Substantial Assurance

Waste & Street Scene

Fieldwork in progress

Local code of corporate
governance

Draft report issued

Insurance

Final

Payroll

Fieldwork in progress

-

Health and safety

Deferred

-

Information governance

Deferred

-

ICT

Deferred

-

Contract management and
procurement

Deferred

Debtors

Deferred

Reasonable Assurance
Reasonable Assurance

-

Other work
Internal audit work has been undertaken in a range of other areas during the period,
including those listed below.


Covid-related support and advice, including: Covid-19 grant post-assurance
checking; supplier relief; Local Authority Compliance and Enforcement Grant
certification



Support and advice provided through the year on controls and processes, such as
the rent accounting system and responding to external audit information requests
(ie “Informing the audit risk assessment 2020-21”)



Collation and review of various sources of evidence (eg financial governance and
performance, the health and safety system, procurement, complaints, information
governance, and counter fraud efforts) in support of our assessment of the
Council’s governance, risk management and control arrangements

Page 73

10

APPENDIX B: SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES FROM AUDITS FINALISED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO
THE COMMITTEE
System/area Opinion

Area reviewed

Date
issued

Comments

Management
actions agreed

Creditors

The audit reviewed procedures
and controls for raising orders
and paying creditor invoices. It
also included a review of
processes for paying Covid-19
grants and follow-up of the
actions agreed in the 2019/20
audit.

July
2021

The purchasing system enforces
separation of duties in requisitioning and
approval, with appropriate documentary
evidence retained through the purchaseto-pay cycle. Adequate separation of
duties and authorisation was found to be
in place for the payment of Covid-19 grant
payments to eligible beneficiaries.

The requirement to
document supplier
amendments will form
part of performance
appraisal processes and
be included in future
training.

Reasonable
Assurance

Page 74

Weaknesses identified included a lack of
evidence available to support supplier
account amendments, a number of actual
and potential duplicate payments, a
significant increase in payments made
against invoices without an official order,
and the absence of clear guidance on
corporate credit card use.

Main
accounting
system

Substantial
Assurance

The audit reviewed key
accounting processes and
controls, including bank
reconciliations, control accounts,
and journals and virements. It
also included a review of user
access controls.

July
2021

The consolidated bank reconciliation is
now carried out (and subject to separate
review) on a monthly basis, with no
unreconciled amounts outstanding at the
time of the audit. Data is transferred
automatically between key systems and
Civica Financial, with regular

Potential duplicate
payments will be
investigated, with
appropriate action
taken.
Credit card policy
requirements will be
reiterated and new
policy and procedures
will be developed to
comply with the Strong
Customer Authentication
rules.
In addition to monthly
checks already
performed, twice-yearly
reviews will be
undertaken to confirm if
access is still required
by managers.

11
System/area Opinion

Area reviewed

Date
issued

Comments

Management
actions agreed

reconciliations performed to confirm
completeness and accuracy of transfer. All
journals are independently verified. Yearend closedown procedures are
documented and accompanied by a
comprehensive planning schedule.

Use of the virement
function in Civica will be
investigated to establish
the benefits. A log of
virements will be
developed and
maintained, and
referred to in new
guidance to be drafted
and shared with budget
managers.

Page 75

Weaknesses identified included the
existence of four users with full access
rights to the general ledger who did not
require these permissions, and a lack of
consistency in the way in which virements
are entered on Civica Financials and their
approval is documented.
Insurance

Reasonable
Assurance

The audit was primarily
undertaken as a process review
focused on the design of controls
relating to the claims
administration process but it did
include some, limited elements of
compliance testing where
appropriate.

July
2021

The Council receives a low volume of
claims across its assurance classes and
the extent of its involvement in the claims
process is to pass them to the insurer and
to liaise with them during the process –
the insurers are responsible for all
processing, up to and including
settlement.
Roles and responsibilities within the
process are understood, expected cover is
in place, legal is consulted where advice is
required, and the renewal process –
facilitated by the Council’s broker – is
sufficiently detailed, with the Chief Finance
Officer authorising final prices.

A six-monthly review
process will be
undertaken, and
reported to the Strategic
Management Board
meeting, which will
include details of
outstanding claims, risks
identified and lessons
learned. The Council’s
website will be updated
to include information
on how to submit a
claim.

12
System/area Opinion

Area reviewed

Date
issued

Comments
Weaknesses identified included a lack of
regular review and management oversight
of outstanding claims and an absence of
management information on current and
historic claims data from which to monitor
performance, identify trends, and ensure
completion of actions. Customer-facing
information on how to make a claim is not
available via the Council’s website.

Management
actions agreed

Page 76

13

APPENDIX C: AUDIT OPINIONS AND PRIORITIES FOR ACTIONS
Audit opinions
Audit work is based on sampling transactions to test the operation of systems. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud
or error. Our opinion is based on the risks we identify at the time of the audit.
Our overall audit opinion is based on 4 grades of opinion, as set out below.

Page 77

Opinion

Assessment of internal control

Substantial
assurance

Overall, good management of risk with few weaknesses identified. An effective control environment
is in operation but there is scope for further improvement in the areas identified.

Reasonable
assurance

Overall, satisfactory management of risk with a number of weaknesses identified. An acceptable
control environment is in operation but there are a number of improvements that could be made.

Limited assurance

Overall, poor management of risk with significant control weaknesses in key areas and major
improvements required before an effective control environment will be in operation.

No assurance

Overall, there is a fundamental failure in control and risks are not being effectively managed. A
number of key areas require substantial improvement to protect the system from error and abuse.

Priorities for actions
Priority 1

A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires
urgent attention by management

Priority 2

A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs
to be addressed by management.

Priority 3

The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management.

14

APPENDIX D: INTERNAL AUDIT – QUALITY ASSURANCE AND
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME
1.0 Background
Ongoing quality assurance arrangements
Veritau maintains appropriate ongoing quality assurance arrangements designed
to ensure that internal audit work is undertaken in accordance with relevant
professional standards (specifically the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards).
These arrangements include:



















the maintenance of a detailed audit procedures manual
the requirement for all audit staff to conform to the Code of Ethics and
Standards of Conduct Policy
the requirement for all audit staff to complete annual declarations of
interest
detailed job descriptions and competency profiles for each internal audit
post
regular performance appraisals
regular 1:2:1 meetings to monitor progress with audit engagements
induction programmes, training plans and associated training activities
attendance on relevant courses and access to e-learning material
the maintenance of training records and training evaluation procedures
membership of professional networks
agreement of the objectives, scope and expected timescales for each audit
engagement with the client before detailed work commences (audit
specification)
the results of all audit testing and other associated work documented using
the company’s automated working paper system (Sword Audit Manager)
file review by senior auditors and audit managers and sign-off at each
stage of the audit process
the ongoing investment in tools to support the effective performance of
internal audit work (for example data interrogation software)
post audit questionnaires (customer satisfaction surveys) issued following
each audit engagement
performance against agreed quality targets monitored and reported to each
client on a regular basis
regular client liaison meetings to discuss progress, share information and
evaluate performance

On an ongoing basis, samples of completed audit work are subject to internal
peer review by a Quality Assurance group. The review process is designed to
ensure audit work is completed consistently and to the required quality
standards. The work of the Quality Assurance group is overseen by an Assistant
Director. Any key learning points are shared with the relevant internal auditors
and audit managers. The Head of Internal Audit will also be informed of any
general areas requiring improvement. Appropriate mitigating action will be taken
where required (for example, increased supervision of individual internal
auditors or further training).

Page 78

15

Annual self-assessment
On an annual basis, the Head of Internal Audit will seek feedback from each
client on the quality of the overall internal audit service. The Head of Internal
Audit will also update the PSIAS self-assessment checklist and obtain evidence
to demonstrate conformance with the Code of Ethics and the Standards. As part
of ongoing performance management arrangements, each internal auditor is also
required to assess their current skills and knowledge against the competency
profile relevant for their role. Where necessary, further training or support will
be provided to address any development needs.
The Head of Internal Audit is also a member of various professional networks
and obtains information on operating arrangements and relevant best practice
from other similar audit providers for comparison purposes.
The results of the annual client survey, PSIAS self-assessment, professional
networking, and ongoing quality assurance and performance management
arrangements are used to identify any areas requiring further development
and/or improvement. Any specific changes or improvements are included in the
annual Improvement Action Plan. Specific actions may also be included in the
Veritau business plan and/or individual personal development action plans. The
outcomes from this exercise, including details of the Improvement Action Plan
are also reported to each client. The results will also be used to evaluate overall
conformance with the PSIAS, the results of which are reported to senior
management and the board4 as part of the annual report of the Head of Internal
Audit.

External assessment
At least once every five years, arrangements must be made to subject internal
audit working practices to external assessment to ensure the continued
application of professional standards. The assessment should be conducted by
an independent and suitably qualified person or organisation and the results
reported to the Head of Internal Audit. The outcome of the external assessment
also forms part of the overall reporting process to each client (as set out above).
Any specific areas identified as requiring further development and/or
improvement will be included in the annual Improvement Action Plan for that
year.

2.0 Customer Satisfaction Survey 2021
In March 2021 we asked clients for feedback on the overall quality of the internal
audit service provided by Veritau. Where relevant, the survey also asked
questions about counter fraud and information governance services. A total of
165 surveys (2020 – 136) were issued to senior managers in client
organisations. A total of 19 responses were received representing a response
rate of 12% (2020 – 11%). The surveys were sent using Survey Monkey and the
respondents were required to identify who they were. Respondents were asked
to rate the different elements of the audit process, as follows:



4

Excellent (1)
Good (2)

As defined by the relevant audit charter.

Page 79

16



Satisfactory (3)
Poor (4)

Respondents were also asked to provide an overall rating for the service. The
results of the survey are set out in the charts below. These are presented as
percentages, for consistency with previous years. However, it is recognised that
the low number of respondents means that the percentage for each category is
sensitive to small changes in actual responses (1 respondent represents about
5%).
Quality of planning / overall
coverage

Provision of advice /
guidance

5%

11%

0%

11%

47%

Excellent

53%

37%

37%

Good

Satisfactory

Poor

Staff conduct /
professionalism

Excellent

Good

Poor

Ability to establish positive
rapport with customers

5% 5%

0%

11%

16%

47%
42%

74%

Excellent

Satisfactory

Good

Satisfactory

Poor

Knowledge of system /
service being audited

Excellent

Satisfactory

Poor

Minimising disruption to the
service being audited
5%

5%

16%

32%

21%

Good

16%

63%

42%

Excellent

Good

Satisfactory

Poor

Page 80

Excellent

Good

Satisfactory

Poor

17

Communicating issues
during the audit

Quality of feedback at end
of audit

11%

6%

11%

11%

50%

53%
26%

Excellent

33%

Good

Satisfactory

Poor

Excellent

Accuracy, format, length &
style of audit report
5%

Good

Satisfactory

Poor

Relevance of audit opinions
& conclusions

11%

5%

11%
47%

26%

Excellent

58%

Good

Satisfactory

37%

Poor

Excellent

Overall rating for internal
audit service
0%

11%

32%

Excellent

58%

Good

Satisfactory

Poor

Page 81

Good

Satisfactory

Poor

18
The overall ratings in 2021 were:
Excellent
Good
Satisfactory
Poor

2021
11
58%
6
32%
0
0%
2
11%

2020
3
20%
11
73%
0
0%
1
7%

The feedback shows that the majority of respondents continue to value the
service being delivered.

3.0 Self-Assessment Checklist 2021
CIPFA has prepared a detailed checklist to enable conformance with the PSIAS
and the Local Government Application Note to be assessed. The checklist was
originally completed in March 2014 and has since been reviewed and updated
annually. Documentary evidence is provided where current working practices are
considered to fully or partially conform to the standards. A comprehensive
update of the checklist was undertaken in 2020, following revisions by CIPFA.
Current working practices are considered to be at standard. However, as in
previous years there are a few areas of non-conformance. These areas are
mostly as a result of Veritau being a shared service delivering internal audit to a
number of clients as well as providing other related governance services. None
of the issues identified are considered to be significant. Existing arrangements
are considered appropriate for the circumstances and require no further action.
The following areas of non-compliance remain largely unchanged from last year.
Conformance with standard

Current position

Where there have been significant
additional consulting services agreed
during the year that were not already
included in the audit plan, was
approval sought from the audit
committee before the engagement
was accepted?

Consultancy services are usually
commissioned by the relevant client
officer (generally the s151 officer).
The scope (and charging
arrangements) for any specific
engagement will be agreed by the
Head of Internal Audit and the
relevant client officer. Engagements
will not be accepted if there is any
actual or perceived conflict of interest,
or which might otherwise be
detrimental to the reputation of
Veritau.

Does the risk-based plan set out the
respective priorities of audit work?

Audit plans detail the work to be
carried out and the estimated time
requirement. The relative priority of
each assignment will be considered
before any subsequent changes are
made to plans. Any significant

Page 82

19

Conformance with standard

Current position
changes to the plan will need to be
discussed and agreed with the
respective client officers (and reported
to the audit committee).
Work is currently ongoing to introduce
flexible audit planning arrangements.
As part of this exercise, we will be
seeking to assign priorities to audit
activities on an ongoing basis during
the course of the relevant reporting
period. Once complete, the new
arrangements will remove this area of
non-compliance.

Are consulting engagements that have
been accepted included in the riskbased plan?

Consulting engagements are
commissioned and agreed separately.

Does the risk-based plan include the
approach to using other sources of
assurance and any work that may be
required to place reliance upon those
sources?

An approach to using other sources of
assurance, where appropriate is
currently being developed (see
below).

4.0 External Assessment
As noted above, the PSIAS require the Head of Internal Audit to arrange for an
external assessment to be conducted at least once every five years to ensure
the continued application of professional standards. The assessment is intended
to provide an independent and objective opinion on the quality of internal audit
practices.
An external assessment of Veritau internal audit working practices was last
undertaken in November 2018 by the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP).
SWAP is a not for profit public services company operating primarily in the south
west of England. As a large shared service internal audit provider it has the
relevant knowledge and expertise to undertake external inspections of other
shared services and is independent of Veritau.
The assessment consisted of a review of documentary evidence, including the
self-assessment, and face to face interviews with a number of senior client
officers and Veritau auditors. The assessors also interviewed audit committee
chairs.
A copy the external assessment report was reported to this committee on 24
January 2019.

Page 83

20
The report concluded that Veritau internal audit activity generally conforms to
the PSIAS5 and, overall, the findings were very positive. The feedback included
comments that the internal audit service was highly valued by its member
Councils and other clients, and that services had continued to improve since the
last external assessment in 2014.

5.0 Improvement Action Plan
The external assessment identified a number of areas for further consideration
and possible improvement. An action plan was developed to address these
areas. These actions have all been completed, other than one area (shown
below) which remains in progress.
Recommendation

Current Position

Whilst reliance may be placed on
other sources of assurance, the selfassessment brought attention to the
fact that there has not been an
assurance mapping exercise to
determine the approach to using other
sources of assurance. Completion of
such an exercise would ensure that
work is coordinated with other
assurance bodies and limited
resources are not duplicating effort.
(Attribute Standard 2050).

This work is in progress. Work has
been undertaken over the last two
years to identify other sources of
assurance for each client. This
exercise is ongoing, and more detailed
actions have been incorporated into a
longer term development strategy for
Veritau internal audit services (see
below).

In 2020/21, the Quality Assurance group reviewed internal processes for the
follow up of actions agreed during internal audit assignments. It found that
follow up work is generally being undertaking routinely, and in line with
expected procedures. In the majority of cases, actions raised in our reports are
completed by the client and these actions address the issues originally raised.
Findings from follow up work are recorded on the Veritau internal audit
management system. In most cases, sufficient evidence is held on the system to
show that actions have been completed. However there are some cases where
responses received from clients do not fully demonstrate that those actions have
addressed the original findings. We also found that some improvements are
needed to documenting and updating of information on the system. In
particular, records were not always up to date, with some actions which had
passed the agreed deadline remaining outstanding. This is partly due to the
impact of Covid 19 – with a number of clients requesting an easing of follow up
work during the pandemic. In 2021 we will review all outstanding actions, to
bring details up to date. We will also be providing further training to the audit
teams on documenting evidence to support the findings from follow up work.

PSIAS guidance suggests a scale of three ratings, ‘generally conforms’, ‘partially conforms’ and
‘does not conform’. ‘Generally conforms’ is the top rating.
5

Page 84

21
In the last year, we have also recognised the need for a more fundamental
review of internal audit practices within Veritau. While current arrangements
meet the standards, the pace of change in local government and the wider public
sector mean that we need to update aspects of the service to ensure it stays up
to date and continues to deliver good value. We have therefore developed a
three year strategy to help us improve the service. The strategy sets out the
actions we will be taking within Veritau to modernise our practices, from April
2021. The five key areas we are focussing on are:






increasing engagement across all clients
further development of strategic planning frameworks
redesign and modernisation of audit processes (for example flexible work
planning and reducing the time to deliver findings)
increasing investment in high value data analytics work
introducing better measures of outcomes from audit work, to enable us to
direct resources to areas of most value to our clients

6.0 Overall Conformance with PSIAS
(Opinion of the Head of Internal Audit)
Based on the results of the quality assurance process I consider that the service
generally conforms to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, including the
Code of Ethics and the Standards.
The guidance suggests a scale of three ratings, ‘generally conforms, ‘partially
conforms’ and ‘does not conform’. ‘Generally conforms’ is the top rating and
means that the internal audit service has a charter, policies and processes that
are judged to be in conformance to the Standards.

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

COUNTER FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
Date: 28 July 2021
ANNEX 2

Page 87

2

CONTENTS
Background

3

Key performance
3
figures

Analysis of
results

4

Covid-19

5

Counter fraud management

Appendix A
Detailed Summary of Performance 2020/21

Jonathan Dodsworth

Max Thomas

Assistant Director – Corporate Fraud

Head of Internal Audit

Circulation list: Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 88

5

7

3

BACKGROUND
1

Fraud is a significant risk to the public sector. Annual losses are estimated
to exceed £40 billion in the United Kingdom. Financial loss due to fraud can
reduce a council’s ability to support public services and can cause
reputational damage.

2

Veritau delivers a corporate fraud service to the Council which aims to
prevent, detect and deter fraud and related criminality. We employ
qualified criminal investigators to support departments with fraud
prevention, proactively identify issues through data matching exercises,
and investigate any suspected fraud. To deter fraud, offenders face a range
of outcomes, including prosecution in the most serious cases.

3

This purpose of this report is to provide assurance to the Overview and
Scrutiny committee that the Council has effective counter fraud
arrangements in place.

KEY PERFORMANCE FIGURES
4

The counter fraud team helped the Council make £35k of counter fraud
savings in 2020/21, against an annual target of £20k.

5

The team supported Council colleagues by reviewing applications for Covid19 related business grants in pre and post payment checking exercises
throughout the course of the year. In addition to the savings detailed
above, £30k of payments relating to business grants were either stopped or
recovered.

6

The team received 57 referrals of suspected cases of fraud in the course of
the financial year including reports from the public, Council staff, external
agencies, and issues identified through proactive exercises. Eleven
investigations were completed in 2020/21 with successful outcomes1
achieved in 64% of cases.

7

One person was cautioned for a council tax support offence, a warning was
issued to a business owner regarding an application for small business rate
relief, and fraud was prevented in a further four cases.

8

A detailed summary of performance can be found in appendix A, below.

Actual outcomes vary by case type but include, for example, benefits or discounts being stopped
or amended, sanctions, prosecutions, or management action taken.
1

Page 89

4

ANALYSIS OF RESULTS
9

The counter fraud team had an annual target of £20k to achieve in savings
during 2020/21. The savings figures comprise repayment of debt arising
from investigative work, a maximum of one year future savings if an
investigation has stopped an ongoing fraud that would otherwise have
continued, and the prevention of any one-off payments that would have
been made without the intervention of the team. A breakdown of the £35k
of savings achieved in 2020/21 is shown below.
Benefit
Fraud
5%

Breakdown of Savings
2020/21

Council Tax
Fraud
7%

NonDomestic
Rate Fraud
56%

10

Council Tax
Support
32%

The chart below shows that over the past five years Veritau has helped the
Council make over £185k in counter fraud savings, averaging £37k per
financial year.
Annual Counter Fraud Savings
£60,000

£55,161

£50,000
£40,000

£38,642
£32,641

£30,000

£34,549

£24,658

£20,000
£10,000
£0
2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

Page 90

2019/20

2020/21

5

COVID-19
11

The Council has played a key role in distributing government grants to local
businesses in 2020/21. It distributed approximately £23.8 million during
the initial tranche of grants. This was a difficult task, with pressure to
distribute grants quickly to provide essential support whilst keeping the risk
of fraud to an acceptable level. The grant schemes have been targeted by
criminals operating locally, nationally, and internationally. However,
checking arrangements in place within the Council, supported by the work
of the counter fraud team, have helped to minimise and recover incorrect
payments. Veritau reviewed a sample of successful grant applications to
assist the Council in fulfilling government mandated post-payment
assurance work.

12

Potentially fraudulent claims for Covid-19 related grants were investigated
by the counter fraud team in the course of the financial year. Two
investigations were completed and a number are still ongoing. A total of
£30k of payments have either been blocked or recovered.

13

The pandemic has negatively affected the normal operations of the counter
fraud team. The team has been unable to undertake face to face
interviewing, and visits to people’s homes due to Covid-19 restrictions.
Alternative approaches have been found, including interviewing via letter.
Investigative work had to be re-prioritised to address Covid-19 related work
and this has affected the number of cases completed in the course of the
year.

14

Throughout the year the counter fraud team supported the Council by
facilitating access to national data matching resources. These checks were
made to help ensure that payments were made to bank accounts matching
the businesses applying for support. They also helped to ensure that the
businesses applying for grants were eligible under the rules of the
government schemes.

15

The counter fraud team has shared and received information relating to
national scams by organised criminal gangs with government departments,
national bodies, and regional partners.

COUNTER FRAUD MANAGEMENT
16

Veritau undertakes a range of non-investigative activity to support the
development of counter arrangements at the Council. In 2020/21 a new
counter fraud strategy for the Council was produced and the counter fraud
policy was updated.

17

Raising awareness of fraud is an important function of the counter fraud
team, amongst Council staff and the public. Training sessions were
delivered to Council departments by the counter fraud team via video
conferencing instead of in person. A specific cybercrime awareness month
was organised and publicised to all staff in October, and content was also
published and circulated to staff for International Fraud Awareness Week in
November.

Page 91

6
18

This year’s council tax billing included a leaflet advising the public on how
to report fraud if they have concerns. Any prosecution action taken by the
Council is publicised in order to deter others from committing similar
offences.

19

Veritau contributes to national counter fraud publications. Data was
provided to the annual CIPFA counter fraud tracker which documents fraud
against local authorities. In addition, Veritau contributed to and supported
development of the national counter fraud strategy for local authorities,
Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally, which was released in April 2020.

20

The counter fraud team ensures that the Council meets its legal obligations
surrounding counter fraud work. They manage work connected with the
National Fraud Initiative, an exercise run by the Cabinet Office, in which
Council participation is mandatory. They also provide annual transparency
data for publication by the Council.

21

The work of the counter fraud team was recognised in November when it
was nominated as a finalist for Outstanding Team in the Tackling Economic
Crime Awards.

Page 92

7

APPENDIX A: COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY 2020/21
The table below shows the success rate of investigations and levels of savings achieved through counter fraud work in
2020/21.

Amount of actual savings (quantifiable savings - eg
repayment of loss) identified through fraud investigation
% of investigations completed which result in a
successful outcome (for example payments stopped or
amended, sanctions, prosecutions, properties
recovered, housing allocations blocked)

Page 93

Amount of savings from the prevention of Covid-19
grant fraud

2020/21
(Actual: Full Yr)

2020/21
(Target: Full Yr)

2019/20
(Actual: Full Yr)

£34,549

£20,000

£32,641

64%

30%

55%

£30,000

n/a

n/a

Caseload figures for the period are:

2
3

2020/21
(Full Year)

2019/20
(Full Year)

Referrals received

57

41

Number of cases under investigation

312

123

Number of investigations completed

11

20

As at 31/3/21
As at 31/3/20

8

Summary of counter fraud activity
Activity

Work completed or in progress

Data matching

The 2020/21 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) commenced in 2020. Data was gathered from a range of
Council areas, formatted, and securely sent to the Cabinet Office for data matching. Resulting matches
have been released periodically from February 2021 onwards. Over 500 matches for the Council have
been released to date.
In addition to traditional areas, the NFI has included data matching of Covid-19 grant data. This has
enabled checks to be undertaken that were unavailable to local authorities previously, eg cross
boundary data matching. Fourteen matches have been released.

Page 94

Fraud detection
and
investigation

The service continues to promote the use of criminal investigation techniques and standards to respond
to any fraud perpetrated against the Council. Activity completed in 2020/21 includes the following:


Covid-19 related fraud – The team completed two investigations into Covid-19 related grant fraud;
both resulted in fraudulent applications being blocked. In total, £30k of payments were blocked as a
result of investigations in this area.

 Council Tax and Business Rates fraud – The team completed four investigations in these areas. A
formal warning was issued to a member of the public who attempted to falsely claim a discount.

Fraud
management



Internal fraud – No internal fraud allegations were investigated in the last financial year.



Council Tax Support fraud – Five investigations were completed in this area which led to one
person being cautioned for failing to declare capital to the Council.

In 2020/21 a range of activity was undertaken to support the Council’s counter fraud framework.


The counter fraud team regularly alerts Council departments to emerging local and national
fraud threats.

9
Activity

Work completed or in progress

Page 95



In May 2020, the Council’s counter fraud transparency data was updated to include data on
counter fraud performance in 2019/20, meeting the Council’s obligation under the Local
Government Transparency Code 2015.



The Council participated in the annual CIPFA Counter Fraud and Corruption Tracker (CFaCT)
survey in September 2020. The information contributed to CIPFA’s annual report detailing the
extent of fraud against local authorities.



In October 2020, the counter fraud team ran a cybercrime awareness month, delivering
cybercrime awareness information to Council employees through a number of bulletins
provided over the course of the month.



Veritau’s counter fraud team was nominated as a finalist for Outstanding Team in the Tackling
Economic Crime Awards in November 2020.



In November 2020, the counter fraud team raised awareness of fraud internally and amongst
the general public as part of International Fraud Awareness Week.



In March 2021, a leaflet was included in annual council tax billing making the public aware of
how to report concerns of fraud to the Council.



Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, the counter fraud team has provided support to the
Council in preparing for and administering government funded grant schemes. This has
included reviewing government guidance and advising on best practice.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

28 JULY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

SECTION 151 OFFICER (ANTON HODGE)

TITLE OF REPORT:

INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The work of internal audit is governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS). In accordance with those standards internal audit is required to prepare an
indicative risk-based audit plan following consultation with the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and senior management. The purpose of this report is to present to members
the internal audit work programme for 2021/22.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that the internal audit work programme for 2021/22 be approved.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To enable the committee to fulfil its responsibility to approve the internal audit work
programme as part of its responsibility for overseeing the work of internal audit (as stated
within paragraph 7.6 of the Council’s Audit Charter).

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The Council will fail to comply with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) if the internal audit work programme is not approved by the committee,
and it may be subject to increased scrutiny and challenge.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The work of internal audit supports the Council’s overall aims and priorities by promoting
probity, integrity and honest and by helping support the Council to become a more effective
organisation.

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

Once a year the ongoing audit planning process is formalised with the production of an
annual internal audit work programme. Annex 1 to this report sets out the proposed
programme of internal audit work for 2021/22.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE Page

97

28 July 2021

6.2

The planned work is based on an initial assessment of risk undertaken by Veritau,
alongside discussions with this committee and senior officers. The risk assessment process
helps to ensure limited audit resources are prioritised towards those areas which are
considered to be the most appropriate and / or which contribute the most to the
achievement of the Council’s priorities and objectives.

6.3

From 2021/22, Veritau has adopted a new flexible approach to audit planning. This reflects
arrangements being introduced by internal audit teams across the local government sector,
to help direct audit work to areas of greatest risk, or of most value on an ongoing basis. The
new approach complements wider developments of the internal audit service which include
an increased focus on data analytics and assurance mapping. These developments will
help to provide broader assurance than has been possible previously.

6.4

Under the flexible planning approach an indicative programme will be presented at the
beginning of the audit year (i.e. as shown in appendix A of annex 1). The indicative
programme is a long list of areas of potential work which are considered the highest priority
for audit, based on an initial assessment of risk. This will act as a guide for more detailed
planning throughout the course of the year. It is expected that areas will drop out of the
indicative programme, and new areas will be added, as the year progresses and internal
audit’s assessment of relative risks and priorities changes.

6.5

Using the indicative programme, internal audit will then determine work to be undertaken on
an ongoing basis during the year, considering work to:




“Do first” – work of the highest value, priority, or urgency
“Do next” – work to be started after current audit work is completed
“Do later” – work to be scheduled for consideration later in the year

6.6

Decisions on which category work falls into will be based on professional judgement,
together with close communication with key client officers. The decision-making process will
be guided by a number of considerations which will result in audit work being deemed a
higher or relatively lower priority at the time of assessment. These include, for example,
whether internal audit has recent audit assurance, where controls are changing and / or
risks are increasing, and where the area allows internal audit to provide broader assurance.

6.7

The considerations outlined in paragraph 6.6 will be used on an ongoing basis to determine
the audit work that will be carried out. The result of this is the development of a current
assessment of programme priorities, as shown in appendix B of annex 1.

6.8

To ensure the Overview and Scrutiny Committee continues to have oversight of planned
audit work, updates to the overall indicative programme (appendix A) and the current
assessment of work to be undertaken (appendix B) will be presented as part of each
internal audit progress report. This will enable the committee to understand the work that is
currently planned and to provide input on the relative priorities of work to be carried out in
the future.

6.9

So that this flexible approach still allows sufficient attention to be given to areas that are
important to delivery of the annual opinion, internal audit has developed a set of 11 key
assurance areas. These areas will be covered during the year to enable a comprehensive
Head of Internal Audit opinion to be given on the framework of governance, risk
management and control.

6.10

Total planned days for internal audit in 2021/22 are 225. This includes an allocation of days
for review of key systems and service areas within the Council and also includes several
engagements which are expected to be advisory in nature to support the Council with new
and emerging priorities.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Page

98

28 July 2021

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b) Legal
None
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & Disorder)
None

Anton Hodge
Section 151 Officer

Authors:

Connor Munro, Audit Manager
The Veritau Group
connor.munro@veritau.co.uk

Background Papers:
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, CIPFA Local Government Application Note (for the United
Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards)

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE Page

99

28 July 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

1

INTERNAL AUDIT WORK
PROGRAMME
2021/22

Audit Manager: Connor Munro
Head of Internal Audit: Max Thomas
Date: 28 July 2021

Page 101

2

INTRODUCTION
1

Internal audit provides independent and objective assurance and advice
about the Council’s operations. It helps the organisation to achieve its
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to the evaluation
and improvement of the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes.

2

The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and relevant professional standards. These include the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), CIPFA guidance on the
application of those standards in Local Government and the CIPFA
Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit.

3

In accordance with the PSIAS and the Council’s Audit Charter, internal audit
is required to prepare an indicative risk-based audit plan following
consultation with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and senior
management. The work in this audit plan – or work programme – will form
the basis for the Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion on the Council’s
framework of risk management, governance and internal control.

4

Responsibility for effective risk management, governance and internal
control arrangements remains with the Council. The work of internal audit
cannot be expected to prevent or detect all weaknesses or failures in
internal control nor can audit work cover all areas of risk across the
organisation.

5

The content of the internal audit work programme, which is included at
appendix A, has been subject to consultation with this committee, as part
of its 21 January 2020 meeting, and more recently with Strategic
Management Board.

6

The internal audit work programme is based on a total number of 225 days
for 2021/22 which is the same as in 2020/21. Internal audit resources are
limited and the programme is intended to ensure the available resources
are prioritised towards those systems which are considered to carry more
risk and / or which contribute the most to the achievement of the Council’s
priorities and objectives.

7

In order to ensure continued alignment with priorities and risks, Veritau has
introduced a new flexible approach to the development and delivery of the
internal audit work programme. This approach is detailed in the following
sections.

Page 102

3

2020/21 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME
Historic approach
8

Previously, internal audit plans have set out a defined list of audits to be
undertaken during the financial year. Whilst this is an established and well
understood approach, there are limitations in its usefulness, which are
summarised below.

9

The main drawback in preparing annual audit plans is that they do not
reflect the pace of change in local authorities. These types of plan are
based on a risk assessment at a point in time, which aims to predict
priorities for 12+ months in the future. Given the lead time for preparing
plans (work usually commences in January each year), elements of the
plan can effectively already be out of date by the time it is approved. The
plan then continues to become less relevant as the year progresses and
risks and priorities change. While some variations are made under this
more traditional approach, the focus for internal audit work continues to
be on completion of the original plan as far as possible.

10

A further weakness is the tendency of this approach to focus audit work
on whole system assurance1, and historic data. In setting a plan for 12
months, it is not possible to predict in detail where audit time can best be
spent. As a result audit work has traditionally set out to provide assurance
on the whole system or area, or significant elements of it. However, in
recent years, the audit work which has delivered most value to our council
clients has tended to be that which has had a well-defined scope, focused
on specific issues, or specific areas where controls and risks are changing,
and which has utilised data analytics and wider intelligence. For example,
this includes such activity as advising on potential control implications of
changes in processes; undertaking targeted reviews of specific elements
of systems or processes where issues have occurred; or using analytic
techniques to review datasets that, in turn, provide wider assurance. By
its nature this type of work is often driven by issues which arise on an
ongoing basis.

11

The 2021/22 programme retains the fundamentals and benefits of good,
organised planning but represents a new, more responsive approach that
is consistent with developments seen in internal audit teams across the
local government sector.

New approach to audit planning
12

From 2021/22 onwards, at the beginning of the audit year we will present
an indicative outline programme – as is being presented in this report in
appendix A. This will include a broad allocation of time to be spent on
different areas of activity. For the current year, we have retained the
activity areas previously used, which are listed below. In future years, it is

An approach to internal auditing that prioritises coverage of all key processes and controls
operating within a system as opposed to specifically reviewing those processes and controls which
are – after assessment – considered to carry the most risk.
1

Page 103

4

intended to align these areas more closely with the assurance categories
set out in paragraph 18 below.


Corporate and cross cutting: to provide assurance on areas which,
by virtue of their importance to good governance and stewardship, are
fundamental to the ongoing success of the Council.



Financial systems: to provide assurance on the key areas of financial
risk. This helps support the work of the external auditors and provides
assurance to the Council that risks of loss are minimised.



Service areas: to provide assurance on key systems and processes
within individual service areas. These areas face risks which are
individually significant but which could also have the potential to
impact more widely on the operations or reputation of the Council if
they were to materialise.



Technical / projects: to provide assurance on those areas of a
technical nature and where project management is involved. These
areas are key to the Council as the risks involved could detrimentally
affect the delivery of services.



Other audit assurance areas: an allocation of time to allow for
continuous audit planning and information gathering, unexpected
work, and the follow up of work we have already carried out, ensuring
that agreed actions have been implemented by management.



Client support, advice and liaison: work we carry out to support
the Council in its functions. This includes the time spent providing
support and advice and liaising with staff.

13

The indicative programme is a long list of areas of potential work which
are considered the highest priority for audit, based on an initial
assessment of risk. This will act as a guide for more detailed planning
throughout the course of the year. It is expected that areas will drop out
of this list, and new areas will be added as the year progresses and our
assessment of relative risks and priorities changes.

14

Using the indicative programme, we will then determine audit work to be
undertaken on an ongoing, rolling basis during the year, on the basis of:




15

“Do now” – work of the highest value, priority, or urgency
“Do next” – work to be started after current audit work is completed
“Do later” – work to be scheduled for consideration later in the year

Decisions on which category work falls into will be based on professional
judgement, together with close communication with key client officers,
and will be guided by the following considerations. These indicate factors
which will result in audit work being considered a higher priority at the
time of assessment. These include areas:





where we have no recent audit assurance, or other sources of
information
where controls are changing and/or risks are increasing
where we are following up previous control weaknesses
where specific issues have arisen

Page 104

5






that are of significant importance to the Council, for example they
reflect key objectives or high priority projects
that provide broader assurance, for example corporate policies and
frameworks
that need to be covered to enable us to provide an annual opinion
where there are time pressures or scheduling requirements, for
example grant deadlines, or work scheduled to minimise the impact on
Council service areas at busy times.

16

An initial assessment of priorities for work for 2021/22 is included at
appendix B.

17

Individual pieces of work will move between the categories as required
based on their priority at the time of assessment. For example, an audit
scheduled for quarter two to minimise the impact on a service area may
initially be classed as to “do later”, but will become “do now” as we move
into quarter two. Similarly, a project audit classed as “do now” because it
represents an area of high importance to the Council may move from “do
now” to “do next” or “do later”, if the project slips or planned work cannot
be undertaken until a specific point is reached. Towards the end of the
year, audits classed as “do later” are likely to be deferred until the next
year.

18

One potential drawback to this approach is that by allowing the audit
programme to develop over the year, insufficient attention is given to
areas that are important to cover to provide the annual Head of Internal
Audit opinion. To counter this, we have defined the key areas where we
require assurance during the course of the year in order to provide that
opinion. The requirement for gaining assurance across all of these areas
will be taken into account in prioritising work. For example, if we have
undertaken insufficient work in any area, it will become a higher priority
for audit as the year progresses. The assurance areas are:












19

Strategic planning
Organisational governance
Financial governance
Risk management
Information governance
Performance management and data quality
Procurement and contract management
People management
Asset management
Programme and project management
ICT governance

To ensure the Overview and Scrutiny Committee continues to have
oversight of planned audit work, updates to the overall indicative
programme (appendix A) and the current assessment of work to be
undertaken (appendix B) will be presented as part of each internal audit
progress report. This will enable the Committee to understand what work
is currently planned and to provide input on the relative priorities of work
to be carried out in the future.

Page 105

6

20

This is the first year we have fully introduced flexible audit planning. It is
being undertaken alongside wider developments of the internal audit
service including an increased focus on data analytics and assurance
gathering, which complement the flexible approach, and which will help to
provide broader assurance than has been possible previously.

21

We will monitor the effectiveness of the new approach during the year,
and ensure any lessons learnt are used to improve the arrangements in
future years.

Page 106

7

APPENDIX A: INDICATIVE INTERNAL AUDIT WORK
PROGRAMME 2021/22
Area

Days

Potential audits / activity

Corporate and cross
cutting

70

LGR readiness
Freedom of Information
Physical information security
Records management
Procurement
Transparency (follow-up)

Financial systems

40

Income collection and debtor management
CIPFA Financial Management Code
Budget monitoring and management
Council tax and NNDR

Service areas

50

Depot: stores and stock control; fleet
operation and workshop management
Service risk management
Post-Covid economic recovery
Empty Homes Strategy
Home energy efficiency
Support Services review (health check)
Environmental health

Technical / projects

25

Everyone Active (financial support
package)
Cybersecurity (email security, remote
access, awareness)
Disaster recovery / backups management

TOTAL

185

Page 107

8

Other audit assurance areas
Area

Days

Activity

Ongoing assurance

5

Continuous audit planning and assurance
gathering to support annual opinion

Follow up of
management actions

10

Follow up of previously agreed
management actions

TOTAL

15

Client support, advice and liaison
Area

Days

Activity

Client and
committee related
support, advice and
liaison

25

Committee preparation and attendance
Liaison with officers and internal meeting
attendance
Support and advice
External audit liaison
Member and officer training
Contingency

TOTAL

25

OVERALL
PROGRAMME

225

Page 108

9

APPENDIX B: INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22: CURRENT PRIORITIES
Audit / Activity

Rationale

Corporate and cross cutting
Category 1 (do now)
Service risk management

Continuation of work from 2020/21. Key assurance area.

Records management

High risk area. Information governance is a key assurance area.

Category 2 (do next)
LGR readiness

Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing. Provides broader
assurance.

Page 109

Category 3 (do later)
Procurement
Freedom of Information
Transparency (follow-up)

Financial systems
Category 1 (do now)
Income collection and debtor management

Deferred from 2020/21. Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing.

Category 2 (do next)
Council tax and NNDR
Category 3 (do later)
CIPFA Financial Management Code
Budget monitoring and management

Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing.

10

Service areas
Category 1 (do now)
Depot: stores and stock control; fleet
operation and workshop management

Continuation of work from 2020/21. To support ongoing and planned
reviews in these areas.

Category 2 (do next)
Post-Covid economic recovery

Of significant importance to the Council. No recent audit assurance.

Environmental health

Deferred from 2020/21. Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing.

Category 3 (do later)
Home energy efficiency

Page 110

Empty Homes Strategy
Support services review (health check)

Technical / projects
Category 1 (do now)
Everyone Active (financial support package)

To provide support and advice in an area of higher risk with known issues.

Category 2 (do next)
Disaster recovery / backups management

Key assurance area and no recent audit assurance.

Cybersecurity

Key assurance area. Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing.

Category 3 (do later)

Agenda Item 13

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

July 2021

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151) – ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0
1.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT
The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003
to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual
prudential and treasury indicators for 2020-21. This report meets the requirements of
both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That Council is recommended to:
(i)
Note the annual treasury management report for 2020-21; and
(ii)

Approve the actual 2020-21 prudential and treasury indicators in this report.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The Council has adopted the Code. A provision of the Code is that an annual review
report must be made to the Full Council relating to the treasury activities of the previous
year.

4.0
4.1

SIGNIFICANT RISKS
There are significant risks when investing public funds especially with unknown
institutions. However, by the adoption of the CIPFA Code and a prudent investment
strategy these are minimised. The employment of Treasury Advisors also helps reduce
the risk.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 111
OFFICIAL

July 2021

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in
Local Authorities and this report complies with the requirements under this code.

5.2

The Council uses the services of Link Asset Services – Treasury Solutions (Link) to
provide treasury management information and advice.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

During 2020-21 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council should
receive the following reports:
•
•
•

An annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 20 February 2020)
A mid year (minimum) treasury update report (Audit, Overview & Scrutiny
Committee 19 November 2020)
An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to
the strategy (this report).

6.2

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report is therefore important
in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and
highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by Members.

6.3

This Council also confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to
give prior scrutiny to all the above treasury management reports by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee before they were reported to the full Council.

6.4

This report summarises:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Capital activity during the year;
Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital
Financing Requirement);
Reporting of the required prudential and treasury indicators;
Summary of interest rate movement in the year;
Detailed borrowing activity;
Detailed investment activity.

The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing 2020-21.
6.5

The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities may
either be:
•
•

Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or
If insufficient financing is available or a decision is taken not to apply resources,
the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 112
OFFICIAL

July 2021

6.6

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators. The
table below shows the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed.
2020-21
Actual (£)
Total Capital Expenditure

2019/20
Actual (£)

1,014,618

1,145,556

70,527
523,036
236,891
164,164
-

56,855
590,524
313,076
185,101
-

1,014,618

1,145,556

Resourced by:
Capital receipts
Capital grants and contributions
Reserves
S106 Commuted Sums
External Borrowing
Total

The Economy and Interest rates
6.7

The Council’s treasury advisors Link Asset Services – Treasury Solutions (Link)
summarised the key points associated with economic activity in 2020-21 as follows:






6.8

the first national lockdown due to the Coronavirus pandemic in late March 2020
caused an economic downturn that exceeded the one caused by the financial crisis
of 2008/09;
The shorter, second lockdown in November and third lockdown in January 2021,
saw businesses and individuals proving more resilient, resulting in less damage to
the economy than was caused in the first lockdown;
the fast programme of vaccination in both the UK and US is expected to lead to a
return to something approaching normal life during the second half of 2021, and
has been instrumental in speeding economic recovery and the reopening of the
economy. It is therefore expected that the UK economy could recover its prepandemic level of economic activity during quarter 1 of 2022;
the final Brexit agreement on 24th December 2020 eliminated a significant
downside risk for the UK economy. The initial agreement only covered trade so
there is further work to be done on the services sector where temporary
equivalence has been granted in both directions between the UK and EU; that
now needs to be formalised on a permanent basis. There was much disruption to
trade in January as new administrative procedures were implemented. This
appears to have eased, although remains acute in some areas.

Deposit rates continued into the start of 2020-21 at previously depressed levels
following the cut to base rate in March 2020 to 0.10%.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 113
OFFICIAL

July 2021

Overall Treasury Position as at 31 March 2021
6.10

The Council’s opening and closing treasury position for the financial year was as
follows (excluding finance leases):

Total Debt
CFR
Over/(Under) borrowing
Total Investments
Net Debt

31 March 2021
£1,513m
£2.069m
-£0.566m
£28,901m
-£28,335m

31 March 2020
£1.553m
£1.702m
-£0.149m
£26.208m
-£26.059m

The Strategy for 2020-21
6.11

The Treasury Management Strategy for 2020-21 was approved by members at full
Council on 20 February 2020.

6.12

The expectation for interest rates incorporated within the Annual Treasury
Management Strategy for 2020-21 was based on officers’ views at that time, prepared
with assistance from the Council's Treasury Management Advisor (Link Asset
Services) and supported by a selection of City forecasts.

6.13

The interest rates for the UK were expected to be as follows:
Bank Base Rate was expected to rise from 0.75% to 1.00%. It was not expected that
Bank Rate would increase again in 2020-21. The 20-21 Strategy and interest Rate
forecasts were prepared prior to the full impact on the UK and its economy from
the COVID-19 Pandemic.
PWLB Borrowing rates were forecast to rise gradually throughout the next three
years in all periods. Variable and short term rates were expected to be the cheaper
form of borrowing over the period.

6.14

Based on the above, the Strategy adopted by the Council for 2020-21 was as follows:
a)

Long Term Debt to Finance Capital Expenditure (borrowing strategy 202021)
2020-21 was expected to remain as a year of low bank interest rates, with low
returns expected from the Council’s investments. This situation extends the
current opportunity for the Council to utilise an internal borrowing strategy.
Borrowing in advance of need within the constraints of the Prudential Code and
approved Prudential Indicators would only be considered in exceptional
circumstances.
Consideration would be given to financing capital expenditure by taking borrowing
from PWLB/money markets, but the key treasury strategy was to maintain an
under borrowed position to avoid the cost of holding higher levels of investments
and to reduce counterparty risk.

In considering this option however, day to day cash flow constraints and the loss
of longer term interest stability would also be taken into account together with the
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
July 2021

Page 114
OFFICIAL

possibility of having to replace the internal borrowing with external borrowing in a
subsequent year at higher interest rates.
b)

Investment of Surplus cash (investment strategy 2020-21)
The Council’s investment priorities are firstly the security of capital and secondly
the liquidity of its investments. The highest return would then be sought provided
that proper levels of security and liquidity are achieved. The investment risk
appetite of the Council is low in order to give priority to the security of investments.

The Borrowing Requirement and Debt
6.13

The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is termed the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) (excluding borrowing by finance leases).

Total CFR

31 March 2020
Actual
£1.589m

31 March 2021
Budget
£1.553m

31 March 2021
Actual
£1.553m

Borrowing Rates in 2020-21
6.14

The movement in relevant UK market interest rates for the year was as follows:
a) For Bank Rate
Period

%

1 April 2021 – 31 March 2021

0.10

b) For PWLB rates (Inclusive of the 0.20% discount rate)
Range during
Year %

Start of Year
%

End of
Year %

Average in
Year %

1 Year

0.85 – 2.14

2.09

0.99

1.63

5 Years

0.92 – 2.19

2.12

1.38

1.70

10 Years

1.20 – 2.48

2.30

1.91

2.01

25 Years

1.73 – 3.06

2.80

2.39

2.53

50 Years

1.52 – 2.91

2.54

2.19

2.34

Item
Fixed Interest Maturity

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 115
OFFICIAL

July 2021

Borrowing Outturn for 2020-21
6.15

No new borrowing was undertaken during the year and scheduled repayments were
made. At the end of the financial year the debt portfolio was as follows:

Lender

Principal

Type

Interest Rate

PWLB
PWLB

£1.00m
£0.51m

Maturity
EIP

3.69%
2.99%

Borrowing
term at
inception
50 years
19 years

Remaining
Term length
43 years
12 years

Investment Rates in 2020-21
6.16

Deposit rates continued into the start of 2020-21 at previously depressed levels
following the cuts to the base rate in March 2020.
Range
during Year

Start of
Year

7 day LIBID

%
-0.10 – 0.00

1 month

End of
Year

Average
during
Year

%
0.00

%
-0.08

%
-0.07

-0.11 – 0.14

0.10

-0.07

-0.05

3 month

-0.10 – 0.56

0.45

-0.04

0.01

6 month

-0.10 – 0.62

0.59

-0.01

0.07

1 year

-0.05 – 0.77

0.71

0.04

0.17

Item

Investment Outturn for 2020-21
6.17

The Council’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG guidance, which has been
implemented in the Annual Investment Strategy approved by the Council on 20
February 2020. This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating
agencies supplemented by additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit
default swaps, bank share prices etc).

6.18

The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy and the
Council had no liquidity difficulties.

6.19

The following table shows the result of the investment strategy undertaken by the
Council and the relative performance of the internally managed funds against the 7day
LIBID uncompounded rate bench mark:

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 116
OFFICIAL

July 2021

Average
Total
Investment
(£)
Internally Managed:
Temporary & On-Call
Investments
Fixed Term Deposits

Gross
Rate of
Return

Net
Rate of
Return

£7.436m

0.00%

n/a

£26.785m

0.65%

n/a

Benchmark
Return

n/a
-0.07%

6.19

The interest received by the Council from investments in 2020-21 totalled
£177k; this compares to an original budgeted estimate of £205k.

6.20

The Council's investment position is organised by the Finance Section in order to
ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities and security of investments.
Procedures and controls to achieve these objectives are well established both through
Member reporting detailed in the summary, and through officer activity detailed in the
Treasury Management Practices. At the beginning and the end of 2020-21 the
Council's investments position was as follows:
31 March 2021 (£)
Internally Managed
Investments

6.21

31 March
2020 (£)

28,901,486 26,208,398

The maturity of the investment portfolio was as follows;
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 (£)
(£)
On-call Investments
Fixed Term Deposits: Repayable
within 1 month
Repayable 1 month to 3 months
Repayable 3 months to 6 months
Repayable 6 months to 12 months
Repayable 12 months to 24 months
Total

6.22

1,401,486

4,708,398

3,000,000
9,500,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
0
28,901,486

1,000,000
2,900,000
13,600,000
4,000,000
0
26,208,398

Investments were placed with the following institutions:
31 March
2021 (£)

Type of Institution
UK Clearing Banks
Foreign Banks
Building Societies
Local Authorities
Total

8,901,486
20.000.000
28,901,486

31 March 2020
(£)
9,208,398
17,000,000
26,208,398

Compliance with Treasury Limits
6.23

During the financial year the Council operated within the treasury limits and Prudential
Indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement (annex
B).

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 117
OFFICIAL

July 2021

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The results of the investment strategy effect the funding of the capital programme.
b)

Legal
There are no legal implications within this report

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder, Climate Change)
There are no additional implications within this report.

Anton Hodge Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance Officer (s151)
01653 600666 ext: 392
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers: None

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 118
OFFICIAL

July 2021

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STATEMENT AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY REPORT- RISK MATRIX
– ANNEX A
Issue/Risk
Credit risk - associated with
investing with financial institutions
that do not meet the credit rating
criteria.

Consequences if allowed
to happen
Could mean loss of
principal sum and interest
accrued.

Likeli-hood

Impact

Mitigation

2

D

The economic climate has seen
uncertainty as a consequence of
the COVID-19 Pandemic, meaning
counterparty risk is still a big
issue. As a result the Council
have adopted and maintained a
stringent credit rating
methodology.
The number of investment options
is kept to a minimum. Investments
are normally restricted to short
term fixed rate deposits or instant
access accounts.
This Strategy specifies the type of
instrument the authority is
prepared to invest in and
maximum term for those
investments. A cash balance is
kept in a call account for access
when needed, and all deposits are
restricted to a maturity profile of 12
months or less

The poor performance of
the chosen investment.

2

B

Liquidity risk - Use of fixed term
deposits and / or instruments /
investments with low marketability
may mean a lack of liquidity

Unable to take advantage
of better investment
options. Funds are
unavailable to cover capital
spend.

1

B

Page 119

Market risk - Selection of wrong
type of investment for higher
return.

Score
1
2
3
4
5

Likelihood
Very Low
Not Likely
Likely
Very Likely
Almost Certain

Score
A
B
C
D
E

Impact
Low
Minor
Medium
Major
Disaster

Mitigated
Likelihood
1

Mitigated Impact

2

B

1

B

D

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX B
PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS
Prudential Indicators
2019/20
Actual

2020/21
Estimate

2020/21
Actual

£1.146m

£3.321m

£1.015m

£0m

£0m

£0m

Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March
(incl. leases)

£1.702m

£2.069m

£2.069m

Annual change in Capital Financing Requirement

-£0.163m

£0.367m

£0.367m

Capital Expenditure
Net borrowing requirement

Treasury Management Indicators
2019/20
Actual

2020/21
Original

2020/21
Actual

Authorised Limit for external debt borrowing
other long term liabilities
Total

N/a
N/a
N/a

£10.0m
£ 1.5m
£11.5m

N/a
N/a
N/a

Operational Boundary for external debt borrowing
other long term liabilities
Total

N/a
N/a
N/a

£5.0m
£1.0m
£6.0 m

N/a
N/a
N/a

£1.55m

£1.51m

£1.51m

N/a

100%

N/a

N/a

50%

N/a

N/a

£1.0m

N/a

External debt

Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure
Net principal re fixed rate investments
Upper limit for variable rate exposure
Net principal re variable rate investments
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over
364 days
(per maturity date)

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 121

July 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

28 JULY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SIMON COPLEY

TITLE OF REPORT:

SCRUTINY REVIEWS – SCOPING REPORTS

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To update the Overview and Scrutiny committee on the scoping work undertaken for
finalising the agreed subjects and order of the Scrutiny Review topics.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)
The committee note the scoping reports prepared on the shortlisted scrutiny
review topics
(ii)
Following the initial scoping work, progress the scrutiny review into affordable
housing first, followed by the review of civil enforcement and then performance
appraisals
(iii)
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny committee indicate if they would like to
be involved in the first scrutiny review topic working group

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To provide the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an opportunity to feed in views
on the scoping reports prepared and consider the implications of conducting the three
topics listed and the order of the scrutiny reviews prior to a decision by the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

None

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The shortlisted scrutiny review topics link into the Council Plan 2020-2024 under the
following strategic priorities:

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 123

Affordable Housing – Our Economy – Quality homes people can afford
Civil Enforcement – Our Communities and Our Environment – A safe place to live,
Clean and attractive streets
Performance Appraisals – Our Organisation – A great place to work
REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

What is a Scrutiny Review?
6.1

Overview and scrutiny committees play an important role in monitoring council
performance and delivering effective accountability. At every meeting of the committee,
members consider the work programme for forthcoming meeting dates. In addition to
this, usually at the start of a new municipal year, the committee has selected a topic to
conduct a scrutiny review into.

6.2

Scrutiny reviews are set up to examine a specific issue in detail, such as to evaluate
service provision or the impact of a particular policy or process. It is recommended that
any topic chosen has a narrow focus, to make sure that it can get into enough detail
on a topic but avoid it becoming too broad.

6.3

Through the scrutiny review, a set of recommendations can be made by elected
members as a ‘critical friend’ to help improve council services for the benefit of citizens
in the district. Scrutiny reviews should examine strategic impacts, not just procedures
and process.

How to scope a Scrutiny Review Topic
6.4

The Local Government Association has produced ‘A councillor’s workbook on scrutiny’,
setting out a criteria for how to select topics that would be suitable for scrutiny reviews.
These include:







Topics where scrutiny could have an impact and add value
The topic is of high local importance and reflects the concerns of local people
The issue is one that the committee can realistically influence
The issue is related to an area where the council, or one of its partners, is not
performing well
The issue is relevant to all or large parts of the local area
The review would be in the council’s interests

The guide also suggests topics that may not be suitable for a scrutiny review, such as:
 The issue is already being addressed elsewhere and change is imminent
 Scrutiny involvement would have limited or no impact upon outcomes
 The topic is too broad to make a review realistic
 New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year
What is the Scrutiny Review process?
6.5

Following the selection of a topic by the Overview and Scrutiny committee, the first
scrutiny review working group will initially meet to create a terms of reference for the
review, to fully define the purpose and scope of the scrutiny review. This will then be
brought back to a future Overview and Scrutiny Committee for approval.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 124

6.6

Scrutiny reviews are usually carried out by a small group of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee members (usually no more than four), with meetings held outside of the
formal meeting dates to progress the reviews in a timely manner. These working
groups could be held virtually or in-person, depending on the circumstances of the
members involved.

6.7

In the past, the committee has undertaken scrutiny reviews into a wide range of topics,
such as council meeting start times and management of meetings, the council’s role in
flood management, asset management and a review of fuel poverty & affordable
warmth.

6.8

In July 2019, the committee agreed to set up scrutiny reviews into the topics of
equalities, the impact of universal credit and climate change. Although the scrutiny
review into equalities produced an interim report back to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee in October 2019, the other scrutiny reviews did not progress beyond the
research stage and initial working group meetings. In order to agree new topics for
members of the committee to ‘own’ and progress over the next twelve months, it is not
proposed to pick up these topics again.

6.9

At the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on June 10, 2021, members asked
for scoping reports on the following topics:




Affordable Housing
Review of Enforcement
Performance Appraisals

Since the committee meeting, officers have worked up scoping reports on each of the
shortlisted topics through meeting with the service managers to discuss potential areas
that could be explored as part of a scrutiny review. This is to assist elected members
in making a decision on a) whether the initial topics identified are worth further
consideration through a scrutiny review and b) in what order these should be
considered. The scoping reports are attached at Appendix A.
6.10

Members of the Corporate Governance team have attended meetings with the Audit
Manager from Veritau to make sure that any overlap with the internal audit work
programme for 2021/22 is kept to a minimum with the work of the scrutiny reviews.
There is not expected to be any overlap based on the proposed internal audit 2022/23
plan and the scrutiny review topics shortlisted by elected members in June.

6.11

As a result of the work undertaken, the recommendation is that the Affordable Housing
scrutiny review is progressed first. This is because the topic is key to delivering the
strategic priority in the Council Plan of ‘Quality homes people can afford’, the ongoing
work of the Housing Development Programme and the national focus on the topic at
the current time. This is expected to take place from August to November 2021.
Following the conclusion of this scrutiny review, it is proposed the Review of
Enforcement scrutiny review takes place from December 2021 to February 2022,
followed by the Performance Appraisals from March 2022, but these timescales are
subject to change.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None identified

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 125

b)

Legal
None identified

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)
Input from staff in the relevant service areas will be needed to support the scrutiny
review process during the course of the information gathering and provide
technical advice/support to the task groups as required.

Simon Copley
Head of Corporate Governance
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Christine Phillipson, Senior Corporate Governance Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43447
christine.phillipson@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None.
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/a

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

28 JULY 2021

Page 126

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Scoping Report – Affordable Housing
The question that the scrutiny review is
trying to answer

Key points that the review would like to
cover

Given the improved performance in the
delivery of affordable homes in Ryedale
over the last 12 months, what work is
ongoing to sustain this and how can the
Council use the tools at its disposal to
influence partners and seek to facilitate
the right type of affordable housing for
local people in the future?












The progress of the current
Housing Delivery Programme
(HDP) and the different types of
development schemes proposed
to meet the affordable housing
need (e.g. rural exception,
developer led).
Review of approaches by other
non-stock holding local
authorities, with an assessment
of effectiveness and applicability
to Ryedale DC.
The potential impact of changes
to the definition of affordable
housing e.g. the inclusion of First
Homes
Whether the Key Performance
Indicator (KPI) for the delivery of
affordable units in the district at
75 per annum is adequate. The
target is based on the Net Deficit
Figure information in the
Strategic Housing Market
Assessment (SHMA), with a
SHMA review taking place later
this year.
What tools can the Council
employ to lever in the right type
of affordable housing as part of
future developments?
What would be the strategic
impact of any improvements
across the whole range of

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Old Malton Road, Malton, YO17 7HH
Web: www.ryedale.gov.uk Email: enquiries@ryedale.gov.uk Tel: 01653 600 666
Page 127
VAT number: 171 3200 11

Indicators & Measures to provide
background information for the Scrutiny
Review

Improvements
Other information

Council priorities? (ie: not just in
housing terms, but also
communities, economy and
environment.)
 Historic information on the
number of affordable housing
units delivered per annum in
Ryedale. If possible, break this
data down into by tenure and/or
by delivery method.
 Housing affordability ratio data
for Ryedale from the Office for
National Statistics.
 The affordable housing aspects
of the wider Housing Strategy
delivery.
To be assessed as part of the review.



Awareness of officer workload in
conducting the scrutiny review.
This topics links to the ongoing
review of the Council’s
Performance Framework

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Old Malton Road, Malton, YO17 7HH
Web: www.ryedale.gov.uk Email: enquiries@ryedale.gov.uk Tel: 01653 600 666
Page 128
VAT number: 171 3200 11

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Scoping Report – Review of Civil Enforcement Work
The question that the scrutiny review is
trying to answer

Key points that the review would like to
cover

What has been the impact of the civil
enforcement team, and where might it
be developed further?













What is the strategic impact of
the enforcement work and how
does it support delivery of the
Council’s priorities?
Is the scope of the civil
enforcement function
appropriate?
How is civil enforcement
interacting with other Council
functions and relevant functions
delivered by external partners?
Range of issues currently being
dealt with.
What is working well?
What areas of the service could
be improved?
Public view of enforcement
service
Effectiveness of proactive
campaigns - early intervention,
preventative approach.
Policy and Procedure of the
issuing of Fixed Penalty Notice’s
(FPN’s)
Public Space Protection Orders
(PSPO) implementation

Indicators & Measures

KPIs
FPN’s issued/paid/challenged

Improvements

Use of Body Cameras
Abandoned vehicles – process of
checking vehicle registered keeper
details
Posts are relatively new so not too
much information at present.
Education and calendar of training
events provided.

Other information

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Old Malton Road, Malton, YO17 7HH
Web: www.ryedale.gov.uk Email: enquiries@ryedale.gov.uk Tel: 01653 600 666
Page 129
VAT number: 171 3200 11

This topic involves lots of multi agency
working.
Links to the review of the Council’s
Performance Framework

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Old Malton Road, Malton, YO17 7HH
Web: www.ryedale.gov.uk Email: enquiries@ryedale.gov.uk Tel: 01653 600 666
Page 130
VAT number: 171 3200 11

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Scoping Report – Performance Appraisal System
The question that the scrutiny review is
trying to answer

Key points that the review would like to
cover

Indicators & Measures

Improvements
Other information

How is the appraisal process
contributing to effective performance
across the organisation and can it be
refined?


What is the strategic impact of
appraisals, in terms of supporting
the delivery of the Council’s
priorities and performance
management?
 What appraisal system is in
operation?
 Is it appropriate and
proportionate to the organisation
and its current context?
 What evidence is there that
appraisals are having a positive
impact on performance?
 What developments may be
required to ensure that staff have
clear guidance on priorities and
that performance is measured
and addressed if necessary?
 What other forms of staff liaison
with team leaders and managers
is taking place across the council
outside of the formal appraisal
process e.g. team meetings, 1-21s, wellbeing groups?
 Evidence of appraisal activity
across all functions.
 Evidence of appraisal impacting
performance.
 Evidence of staff engagement
with wellbeing activities and
support groups.
To be determined from the review.
 Officer workload awareness.
 This topic is linked to the ongoing
review of the Council’s
Performance Framework

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Old Malton Road, Malton, YO17 7HH
Web: www.ryedale.gov.uk Email: enquiries@ryedale.gov.uk Tel: 01653 600 666
Page 131
VAT number: 171 3200 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 15

Policy and Resources Committee
Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
on Tuesday 29 June 2021
Present
Councillors Joy Andrews, Arnold, Bailey (Substitute), Burr MBE, Clark (Chairman), Docwra,
Duncan, Frank and Graham
Overview & Scrutiny Committee Observers: Councillors Raper and Middleton (virtually).
In Attendance
Will Baines and Simon Copley
Beckie Bennett, Chris Granger, Anton Hodge, Jane Robinson, Phillip Spurr and Margaret
Wallace attended virtually.
Minutes

13

Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Keal and Councillor
Delaney, Councillor Bailey substituting.
14

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.
15

Chair's Announcements

The Chair announced that he would be arranging a meeting date with Group
Leaders to consider the Car Park Action Plan.
Cllr Duncan raised an email setting out the planned approach to setting up a
Joint Works Group. Cllr Clark proposed to raise this at a future Group Leaders
meeting.
16

Minutes of the meeting held on 27 May 2021

Decision
That the minutes of the Policy and Resources Committee held on 27 May 2021
be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record.
Voting record
8 For
0 Against
1 Abstention
17

Urgent Business

Policy and Resources Committee

1

Page 133

Tuesday 29 June 2021

There were no items of urgent business.
18

Policy and Resources Committee Forward Plan

The Policy and Resources Committee Forward Plan was received.
It was requested that the following items be added:
i)
Regular monitoring reports on the Council Plan
Decision
That the Policy and Resources Committee Forward Plan be adopted, to include
the amendments requested.

19

Government Consultations

The ongoing public consultation on the Transport for the North Decarbonisation
Strategy was noted, with a draft response to be circulated to committee
members for comments prior to submission.
PART 'A' ITEMS - MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS OR
MATTERS DETERMINED BY COMMITTEE

20

Appointment of Members to the Flood Management Working Party

Decision
To appoint Members to the Flood Management Working Party as detailed in
Annex A.
Voting record
9 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
The committee also agreed to refer the motion to Council on 18 February 2021
(minute 77) to the Flood Management Working Party for consideration on 8 July
2021 to make recommendations to the Policy and Resources Committee.
Decision
The Policy and Resources committee refer the motion to Council on 18
February 2021 (minute 77) to the Flood Management Working Party for
consideration on 8 July 2021 to make recommendations to the Policy and
Resources Committee.
Voting record
Policy and Resources Committee

2

Page 134

Tuesday 29 June 2021

Agreed by general affirmation.

21

Draft Revenue Outturn 2020-21

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Decision
i)

ii)

The Policy and Resources Committee notes the contents of the report and
that the draft Deficit Balance of £345k has been transferred from the
General Reserve.
The Policy and Resources Committee approves a carry forward of
£2.264m from the Capital Programme.

Voting record
9 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
22

Resources and Waste Strategy DEFRA Consultation - Consistency in Collections

Considered – report of the Head of Customer and Communities
Councillor Duncan queried the ‘Disagree’ response to Q20 of the draft
consultation responses in Appendix A rather than the ‘Not sure / don’t have an
opinion / not applicable’ option. This was to be taken into account when
finalising the submission with the Chair of Policy and Resources.
Decision
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The draft Ryedale District Council submission to the DEFRA Consistency
in Collections Consultation at Appendix A of the report (which is still a
working document) is noted.
Any amendments made to the draft consultation responses prior to
submission on the deadline date of the 4 July will be made following
consultation with the Chair of Policy and Resources.
The potential financial impacts of all the proposed changes becoming
legislation from 2023/24 are noted and provision is included in the financial
strategy to include additional revenue implications and capital investment.
These are expected to be offset by additional funding but at this stage this
cannot be confirmed.

Voting record
Agreed by general affirmation.
PART 'B' ITEMS - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL

Policy and Resources Committee

3

Page 135

Tuesday 29 June 2021

23

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

There being no further business, the meeting closed at 9pm.

Policy and Resources Committee

4

Page 136

Tuesday 29 June 2021

Minute Annex
Policy and Resources Working Parties and Sub Committees
Flood Management Working Party

Conservative
Ryedale First Independents
Independents for Ryedale
Liberal
Independent
Lib Dem & Independent

Member
Councillor Mackenzie
Councillor Raper
Councillor Cussons
Councillor Potter
Councillor Burr
Councillor Keal

Page 137
5

Substitute
Councillor Duncan
Councillor Arnold
Councillor Frank
Councillor J Andrews
Councillor P Andrews
Councillor Mason

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138

RDC Forward Plan
Date of Meeting

Committee

A/B

Service Area

Report Title

Draft
Deadline

Final
Deadline

Draft
Press
Release

Implement
Date

Full
Council

Reporting
Officer

Annual
Y/N

May
June
July
OS

Financial Services

Draft Annual Governance
Statement

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

AH

Y

28-Jul-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Scrutiny Reviews Progress
Report and Indentification of
Future Topics

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

SC

Y

28-Jul-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Standards Complaints Overview
and Annual Report

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

SC

Y

28-Jul-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Treasury Management Annual
Report 2020/21

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

AH

Y

28-Jul-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Annual Report 2020-21

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

Veritau

Y

28-Jul-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

External Audit-Update

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

AH

N

28-Jul-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Counter Fraud Framework
Update

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

Veritau

Y

28-Jul-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Economic
Development,
Business and
Partnerships

Everyone Active Annual Report

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

AT

Y

28-Jul-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

A

Communications,
Technologies and
Business
Transformation

Annual Health and Safety
Report

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

LW

Y

28-Jul-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Review of Workplan

06-Jul-21

19-Jul-21

SC

Y

1 of 4

Agenda Item 16

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Page 139

28-Jul-21

Date of Meeting

Committee

A/B

Service Area

Report Title

Draft
Deadline

Final
Deadline

Draft
Press
Release

Implement
Date

Full
Council

Reporting
Officer

Annual
Y/N

August
September
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Services

Customer Complaints and
Compliments Q1 2021/22

08-Sep-21

21-Sep-21

MW

Y

30-Sep-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Risk Management Update

08-Sep-21

21-Sep-21

SC

Y

30-Sep-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit Work Programme
2021/22

08-Sep-21

21-Sep-21

AH

Y

30-Sep-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Economic
Development,
Business and
Partnerships

Climate Change and
Environmental Projects Update

08-Sep-21

21-Sep-21

AT

N

30-Sep-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Services

LGO Annual Review Letter
2020/21

08-Sep-21

21-Sep-21

MW

Y

30-Sep-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Scrutiny Review Progress
Report

08-Sep-21

21-Sep-21

SC

Y

30-Sep-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Review of Workplan

08-Sep-21

21-Sep-21

SC

Y

21-Oct-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Timetable of Meetings 20222023

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

SC

Y

21-Oct-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Statement of Accounts 2020/21

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

21-Oct-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

First Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Progress Reports
2021/22

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

Veritau

Y

21-Oct-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Update of Internal Audit Charter

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

Veritau

Y

Page 140

30-Sep-21

October

2 of 4

Date of Meeting

Committee

A/B

Service Area

Report Title

Draft
Deadline

Final
Deadline

Draft
Press
Release

Implement
Date

Full
Council

Reporting
Officer

Annual
Y/N

21-Oct-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

External Audit Annual Audit
Letter 2020/21

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

21-Oct-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

External Audit Annual Fee
Letter 2021/22

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

21-Oct-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Annual Governance Statement

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

21-Oct-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Treasury Management Mid
Year Review

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Standards Complaints Overview
and Annual Report

27-Oct-21

09-Nov-21

SC

Y

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Services

Customer Complaints and
Compliments Q2 2021/22

27-Oct-21

09-Nov-21

MW

Y

20-Jan-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Second Internal Audit and
Counter Fraud Progress
Reports 2021/22

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

20-Jan-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 Consultation

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

20-Jan-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

External Audit Plan

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

20-Jan-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Corporate
Governance

Update on the use of RIPA

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

SC

Y

November
18-Nov-21

Page 141

18-Nov-21

December
January

3 of 4

Date of Meeting

20-Jan-22

Committee

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

A/B

Service Area

Report Title

Draft
Deadline

Final
Deadline

Draft
Press
Release
11-Jan-22

Implement
Date

Full
Council

Reporting
Officer

Annual
Y/N

17-Feb-22

AH

Y

B

Financial Services

Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Investment
Strategy 2022-23

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Services

Customer Complaints and
Compliments Q3 2021/22

19-Jan-22

01-Feb-22

MW

Y

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Services

Safer Ryedale and Community
Safety Plan

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

MW

Y

24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Financial Services

CIPFA Financial Management
Code

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

AH

Y

24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Economic
Development,
Business and
Partnerships

Climate Change and
Environmental Projects Update

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

AT

Y

24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Corporate
Governance

Risk Management Update

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

SC

Y

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

External Audit Progress Report

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Third Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Progress report

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Governance Plans
2022/23

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

17-Feb-22
Council

February
10-Feb-22

March
24-Mar-22

Page 142

April

4 of 4

